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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM") OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies fo which a higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective invesfors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater
risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited fo professional and other sophisticated invesfors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that
securities fraded on GEM may be more susceptible fo high market volatility
than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities fraded

on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take
no responsibihfy for the contents of this report, make no representation as fo
its accuracy or complefeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any
part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the "Directors’) of Ningbo Yidong
Electronic Company Limited (the "Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Govemning the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange [the
"GEM Llisting Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard fo the
Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that, to the best of their knovv|edge and belief: m the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make
any statement in this report mis|eoding; and (3) dll opinions expressed in this
report have been arrived af after due and careful consideration and are
founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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Corporate Information
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mtr. Liv Xiao Chun (Chairman)
Mr. Gong Zheng Jun

Mr. Chen Zheng Tu

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Zheng Yi Song

Mr. Liv Feng

Mr. Wang Wei Shi
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BYFHTES

Mr. Pang Jun
Mr. law Hon Hing Henry
Professor Fang Min

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Wang Jiangao (appointed on 31 May 2010)
Ms. Wang Ying (resigned on 31 May 2010)

Mr. Yang Li

Mr. Wang Yinbin

MEMBERS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Pang Jun (Chairman)

Mr. law Hon Hing Henry

Professor Fang Min

COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Mr. Liv Xiao Chun

COMPANY SECRETARY
M:r. Tsao Hoi Ho

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Gong Zheng Jun
Mr. Tsao Hoi Ho

AUDITORS
lo and Kwong C.PA. Company Limited
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Corporate Information
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REGISTERED OFFICE
No.3 Wangongchi Road
Xiaodong Industrial Zone
Yuyao

Zhejiang

China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG

KONG

Suites 1604, 16/F
Chinachem Johnston Plaza
178-186 Johnston Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong

COMPANY HOMEPAGE/WEBSITE

www.yidongelec.com

HONG KONG H SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Abacus Limited

PRINCIPAL BANKER
Bank of China
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Turnover

Loss Before Taxation

] BrEi AT E 1B
in thousand RMB in thousand RMB
ARETFT ARBEFT
100 94,522 50
80 0
60 -50
(71,559)
40 -100
25,618
20 I 4422 150 (136930) o
0 . -200
2008 2009 2010 2008 2009 2010
Equity atiributable to owners of the Company Tofal Assefs
AARHE AEGER BmEE
in thousand RMB in thousand RMB
ARBETFT ARMFT
100 500
0 400
335,519
-100 I 300 20870
(140,183)
-200 200
(210,225)
102,600
-300 100
(333,513) I
-400 0
2008 2009 2010 2008 2009 2010
Earnings (Loss) Per Share (Basic)
BREF (EE)(EX)
RMB (in cents)
ARK(5)
10
0
i ] o I
(14.10)
-20
(24.72)
-30 (27.09)
-40
2008 2009 2010
4 NINGBO YIDONG ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED BRIZREFRODERDA



Chairman’s Statement
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| would like to take this opportunity fo report last year's operating
condition to our shareholders on behalf of the Board of Directors.

In 2010, the Group confinued to reinforce the restructuring of its
industrial structure. By disposing of a property which is newly built
but not yet put info operation, with an area of 96,000 square
mefres, we managed fo minimize operafing costs and reduce
debts, with a view to creating a basis for us fo improve the
Group's operating performance.

While controlling operating costs, the Group has stepped up ifs
efforts to expand its presence into the sales channels of operators
including China Unicom and China Telecom. CDMA2000+GSM
and WCDMA+GSM dual-mode, dual standby 3G mobile products
have been offered phone subsidy packages by operators in a
number of provinces, and have begun to be rolled out and
marketed.

In addition, fla-panel intelligent terminals for supporting voice
communication, WiFi wireless network communication and 3G
mobile data communication, which are developed by the Group
with its R&D efforts, have commenced volume production and
commercial shipment in December, and have been well-received
by the market.
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Chairman’s Statement
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In 2010, the Group devoted unwavering dedication to the
implementation of the industrial restructuring policy developed in
the previous year. By making more efforts on product development
and investment in reserves, coupled with a focus on expanding
and building our reach into the sales channels of operators, we
have strengthened our operating strength for a sustainable
development. Although we failed to realize our business goal of
achieving a turnaround from a loss this year, we have established
a good foundation for us to blossom into profitability in the
coming vyear. | believe that the Group is set to reward our
shareholders with better performance in the next year.

Liv Xiao Chun
Chairman

Ningbo, the PRC

28 March 2011
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Management’s Discussion And Analysis
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BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

Turnover

For the vyear ended 31 December 2010, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately RMB14,422,000 (2009:
RMB25,618,000), representing a decrease of approximately 43.7%
over the previous year. The decrease in the Group's revenue is
due to decrease in sales of both mobile phones and controller
systems during the year.

The Group's activities are divided info 2 reportable segments —
namely (] sales of controller systems for consumer electrical and
electronic appliances and income from sales of small electrical
appliances, and (i) sales of controller systems for mobile phones
sales and assembly of mobile phones.

and income from

Accordingly, analysis by reportable segments is provided in note

11.

The Group's activities are also divided into 2 geographical
segments — namely the PRC [excluding Hong Kong) and Hong
information s

Kong. Accordingly, analysis by geographical

provided in note 11.

199% (2009:

reduction of gross loss margin during this year.

(160.7%)] and there is a
The Group
continues fo procure cost confrol to mitigate the impact of price

Cross loss margin s

competition caused by intense competition in the mobile phone
industry.

Other revenues for the year ended 31 December 2010 mainly
include government grants received recognised as income and
reversal of impairment loss recognised in respect of trade and
other receivables. Selling and distribution expenses recorded an
increased by 102.5%, while administrative expenses recorded an
increased of 13.5% over the previous year. For the year ended 31
December 2010, finance costs amounted
RMB?,091,000 (2009: RMBI10,076,000),
decrease of 9.8% over the previous year.

o approximately
which represented a

December 2010
owners of the Company amounted to
RMB123,610,000 (2009: RMB70,525,000].
attributable to owners of the Company was principally due to the
loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and prepaid
lease payments incurred during the year ended 3!

2010.

loss attributable to

1

For the year ended 3]
approximately
Emergence of loss

December
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Management’s Discussion And Analysis
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD AND
ACQUISITION

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any
significant investment and acquisition during the year ended 31
December 2010.

CHANGES IN THE GROUP STRUCTURE

Please refer note 48 for our group structure.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Current assets and liabilities

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had current assets of
approximately RMB86,290,000 (2009: RMB32,974,000],
representing an increase of 161.7% compared with last year. The
increase was mainly atiributable fo the incremental prepayments,
deposits and other receivables during the vyear. As at 31
December 2010, the Group had current liabilities of approximately
RMB436,113,000 (2009: RMB501,085,000), which represented a

decrease of 13%.

Finance and banking facilities

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had bank balances and
cash of approximately RMB253,000 (2009: RMBI1,865,000),
pledged bank deposits of Nil [2009: approximately
RMB10,270,000) shortterm bank borrowings of approximately
RMB84,259,000 (2009: RMBI129,199,000), and net borrowings
of RMB84,006,000 (2009: RMB127,354,000] respectively. The
borrowings were secured by certain property,
equipments, investment properties and prepaid lease payments of

plant and

the Group. The Group will seek to replace the existing shortterm
bank faciliies by longterm bank borowings and secure bank
borrowings with lower costs of borrowings, so as to improve the
Group's financial position and reduce financial costs.

Gearing ratio

The Group's gearing rafio as at 31 December 2010 was 82.1%
(2009: 44.4%), which is expressed as a percentage of the tofal
bank borrowings over the total asses.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities of the Group during the year are set out in
notes 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

8 NINGBO YIDONG ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED

FEEEARERKE

REBEZZT—ZTF+-_A=+—BLFE K
RABEMBPREEIN  ARELBTAERNE
BRWE -

AEEEBEE
EAAREERBEF2HM 348 -

B % 51 B8

RBEERAR
RZZ—ZFEF-_A=+—H XEENOREY
BEAARMESS200000T(ZETNF AR
#32974,0007T) » BEFFEIEMION7% ° i
BEEENNTIZREAAFNEMR BERHE
o RIEM - R —FF+=—A=+—H "
AERERRBRENRAREA36,1130007T(=
TTNF : AR¥S501,0850007T) @ T#13%

MERRBITRFE
R-E—ZF+-_A=+—HB AEEART
EHRLREEROR/ARKE253000T(ZEF
NEF: AR¥1,8650007T) - EEMIRITHER
B(CZTTAF: HARKI02700007T) - &
HIRITEEORARKES4259000T(ZFF
NEFE: ARMI120199000m) K FEE AR
84,006,000t(= & & L F: A R &
127354,0007T) - EEBENAEEBETYE
BENZE REVEARBNBEERERK
B AEERFRLERBRITERABMKR
BERBRTEE  AEFRUARENEERN
BERITEE  ANREANEE &M K& F
ERERA -

EXREELR
AEER_ZT-—ZTF+_A=+t—HHEAXRE
BHERB21% (ZETNF: 44.4%) LLTIIA
RITEERERAEELENBEDLIIR -

HREE
AEEFANSARBBEFRARNKREPHERE
B E38 ©

BRERETROERAT



Management’s Discussion And Analysis
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Capital structure and financial resources

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had net liabilities of
approximately RMB333,513,000 (2009: RMB210,215,000). The
Croup's operations and investments are financed principally by its
internal resources, bank borrowings and shareholders’ equity.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group's income and expenses were denominated in RMB
while cerfain procurement transactions were settfled in US dollars.
The Group regulated its outstanding foreign exchange balance by
conducting sales seffled in US dollars to reduce its foreign
exchange exposure. Since the existing bank borrowings are
repayable in RMB, there was no material foreign exchange risk.
The Group will review and monitor foreign exchange risk from time
to time and may enter info forward swap contracts to hedge such

risks where appropriate.
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Management’s Discussion And Analysis
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

An analysis of employees of the Group by their duties for each of
the three years ended 31 December 2008, 2009 and 2010 is

set out below:

BEERMEBR

REE-FTN\F _FTENFR-F-TF
ToAST-ALESEFESF - BREHT
AEEREWT

Functions B gE
Headcount for the year
ended 31 December
BETZA=ZT-HLEFENAH

2008 2009 2010
—TENF —TENF —Z-FF
Sales and marketing HERTISHE 23 21 22
Research & Development ik 14 35 7
Production [including quality control) FE(BREEEH) 224 124 101
Finance and administration B RATIR 32 60 33
Procurement BREE 8 8 2
301 248 165

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had 165 employees (2009:
248 employees). Remuneration is determined by reference to
market terms and the performance, qualifications and experience
of individual employee. Bonuses based on individual performance
will be paid to employees in recognition and reward of their
Other include contributions to  retirement

contribution. benefits

scheme.

STAFF QUARTERS

Workers and staff of the Group are provided with accommodation
at Yuyao City. The Directors confirm that, apart from the above
accommodation, there was no other housing benefit provided by
the Group fo ifs staff.

10 NINGBO YIDONG ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED
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Management’s Discussion And Analysis

& J2 18 51 ik I 7 il

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

The Group has not experienced any significant labour disputes or
strikes which have led to the disruption of its normal business
operations. The Directors consider that the Group maintains good
relationship with its employees.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior

Management are set out on page 15 to page 17.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, Supervisors and the five
highest paid individuals in the Company are set out in note 16 fo
the consolidated financial statements.

PROSPECTS

The Group has, in 2010,
direction from the previous mode of foundry-only with law adding
value to the mode of selfresearch and development, production
and sale with high adding value. By doing so, the future potential

profitability growth of the enterprise was substantially enhanced.

evolved the Company's business
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Corporate Governance Report
PREGHS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Company had
complied with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
confained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Llisting Rules (the “Code’)
in all material aspects except that no remunerafion committee had
been set up as required by rule B1.1 of the Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2010, the Board comprises nine members,
including three executive directors, three non-executive directors and
three independent non-executive directors [the “INEDs"). Each of
the members possesses sufficient experience and qudlification
which enable them to discharge their duties properly.

The chairman is responsible for the formulation and review of the
Group's overall development strategies. The daily operation s
delegated to the chief executive officer and the executive directors.
None of the INEDs is interested in the business of the Group and
their independence has to be confirmed upon appointment or
reappointment. Currently, there is no financial, business, family or
other relevant material relationship among the existing directors.

According to the articles of association of the Company, all the
directors shall be elected at the general meeting of the
shareholders and the term of office shall be three years, renewable
upon reappointment or re-election.

Board meetfings are conducted on a periodic basis and with
reference to the operation needs. During the year, the board held
7 meetings and the attendance of the directors is set out on page

13.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to oversee the
financial reporting and internal control system of the Group. The
Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive directors,
Mr. Pang Jun [Chairman of the committee), Mr. law Hon Hing
Henry and Professor Fang Min. Mr. law is a committee member
with professional accounting qualification. The oudit committee held
4 meetings during the year ended 31 December 2010 and the
aftendance of the committee members is sef out on page 13.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Remuneration committee has not yet been set up by the Company.
The remuneration policy of the directors is formulated by the Board
and subject to approval by the shareholders af the general meeting.
The Board takes info account of the respective duties, performance
and confribution fo the Company of each of the directors with
reference to the market rafes when deciding their remuneration.

12 NINGBO YIDONG ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED
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Corporate Governance Report
PREGHS

Professor Fang Min were appointed as independent non-executive
directors on 27 February 2009. In the opinion of the Board, the
remuneration defermination has been with a high degree of
independence. Yet on the longterm basis, it believes that the
establishment of the enable the
introduction of a reasonable and encouraging remuneration policy
which is beneficial to the Group's development.

remuneration committee can

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Nomination Committee has not yet been set up by the Board.
As a result,
considered and approved by all members of the Board. The
candidate for the addition fo the Board shall possess appropriate
qudlification and experience and shall only be duly appointed
after the consideration and assessment of the Board.

the nomination for a new member has to be

During the year under review, Professor Fang Min was
recommended as independent non-executive director, and his
appointment fo join the board was made after the detailed

assessment by the Board.

ATTENDANCE OF MEETINGS

As at 31 December 2010, the numbers of meefings held by the
Board and the Audit Commitiee and the respective atfendance of
the directors are as follow:

FHELIR_TENF_A-_T+HEEZEAR
BUFATEST EFERA HFMEES
HCABHEBYE EREMNE  EFER
BRIFHEESAHTAERENBENE
EHMECR AKENBERABBENESR -

EER?
EEEANTRRUREEES  FAM - BE
FEEAQEERLBEFEERORT - 18
EFEREVALABANEERER YR
BERENTRRTEAERBEEM -

REBEFERN  HT8RBIWHER L EBILIEAR
TEF RNAZEFENTH IEBEFEN
SAREAE ML

B HFERL &
RIE—ZEF+_A=+-—H EFCEHNX
Y ERZECCZNERSESTHEERR
UNNE

Number of meeting (attended/held)

SRR (HEE1T)
The Audit
The Board Committee
2Eg EREEE
Executive Directors HITEE
M:r. Liv Xiao Chun (Chairman RHrLE(ER) 9/9 0
Mr. Gong Zheng Jun EEExE 7/9 0
Mr. Chen Zheng Tu PRIE T 504 0/9 0
Non-executive Directors HPITESE
Mr. Zheng Yi Song ERRRAN ST /9 0
Mr. liu Feng Re e /9 0
Mr. Wang Wei Shi TREE /9 0
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHBITESE
Mr. Pang Jun BEE AL /9 4/4
Mr. Llaw Hon Hing Henry )% WA A 8/9 4/4
Professor Fang Min F gL 8/9 4/4
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Corporate Governance Report

PREGHS

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dedling set
out in Rule 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM listing Rules as the code of
conduct for securities transactions conducted by the Company's
directors. After making specific enquires to all the board members,
the Board confirmed that all the directors have compiled with the
relevant code of conduct and all applicable dealing standards.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDITORS IN RESPECT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The respective responsibiliies of the directors and the auditors
towards the shareholders in respect of the consolidated financial
statements and audited consolidated financial statements are set
out in page 26.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company regularly reviews its infernal confrol system in order
fo ensure ifs effectiveness. Reviews on the financial, operation and
risk management measures are conducted on a periodic basis so
as to maintain the standard of effective management.

AUDITORS

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for the
appointment of the external auditors, including the engagement of
non-auditing tasks and fees. During the year under review, the
Company has appointed lo and Kwong C.P.A. Company Limited
to audit the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2010, the fees paid for the audit of the Group's financial

statements amounted to RMB572,000.

14 NINGBO YIDONG ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED

EZETREERS

ARRERM A ER LR A HS548F £5.67
HHARERENEATARESETESRS
MBTFH c EASEEFEREFHARS
Mk EFERR 2REF-EETAMR
AR AT AR 5 R -

EERREMHEPBRRNEE

B =R BAD 9 BB AR
ZHBHRREBRRNE

EYBRRLEAKRE
5 ETIE R E208 -

BB S
ARAEHBEANBELERR  BRAAH
B WEHRTNG  LERBRETREE
LAEER BRI ERAT -

B A

ARBEREZBEGABEZBINERHM B
RZBHBENTIELER REBEFEAR - X
RAZRERSHMEBENERARERBE
—E-TEF A=+ -HLEFENMBREK
ERASEUBRERNER A/ ARKS72000

7T|: o

BRERETROERAT



Directors, Supervisors And Senior Management

EF EFSEEMERAR

DIRECTORS

The Board currently consists of @ Directors including 3 executive

Directors, 3 non-executive Directors and 3 independent non-

executive Directors.

Executive Directors
Mr. Liu Xiao Chun, aged 42 was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company on 5 November 2008. Mr. Lliu
graduated from the Beijing Chemical Fibre Industrial Institute in
1987 with a Bachelor's

automation of manufacturing process and obtained a Master's

Degree in Engineering majoring in
Degree in Business Administration from The University of Hong
Kong in 2005. Mr. Lliu had been an executive director of the
Company since incorporation and up to 4 October 2007, Mr. liu
previously worked with Beijing Printing and Dyeing Factory and
Dongguan Skyworth Electronics Co., Llid. and he has over 15
years of experience in manufacturing and management. Mr. Liu is
responsible for the implementation of the objectives, policies and
strategies as well as day-to-day management and operations of
the Group.

Mr. Gong Zheng Jun, aged 48, is an executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Gong obtained a Master's Degree in
Engineering from Xibei Telecommunications and Engineering Institute
in 1987, and has 10 vyears of technical, operation, sales and
management experience in the mobile handset industry. Mr. Gong
hod been the Senior Vice President of SIM Technology Group
Company prior to joining the company, held various managerial
positions in ZTE Corporation since 1998, and was responsible for
the development of phased array radar in Radar Institute of
Huanghe Machinery and Electronics Factory in 1987 Mr. Gong
joined the Group in November 2006.

Mr. Chen Zheng Tu, aged 59, is a founder of the Group and an
Chen had worked with  Yuyao 2nd

Automobile Electrical Equipment Factory and has over 25 vyears of

executive Director.  Mr.

experience in the manufacturing industry. He is responsible for the
strategic planning and corporate promotion of the Company.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zheng Yi Song, aged 48, was appointed as non-execufive
Director of the Company on 5 October 2007. Mr. Zheng s
currently an executive director of China Ruilian, and China Ruilian
is a substantial shareholder of the Company. He graduated with @
bachelor's degree in management from Capital University of
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Directors, Supervisors And Senior Management

EF EFSEEMERAG

Economics Business in the People’s Republic of China in July 1986.
Mr. Zheng has over 25 vyears of experience in corporate
management and electronics business.

Mr. Lliv Feng, aged 47, has been re-designated as the vice-
chairman and a non-executive director of the Company from the
chairman, an executive director and compliance officer of the
Company with effect from 5 November 2008 in order to allocate
more fime for his other business inferest. Mr. Liu was the executive
assistant to the President of China Ruilian before joining the Group.
Mr. Liu graduated from Dongbei University of Finance & Economics
with a bachelor's degree of Industrial Accounting in 1986 and he
has over 15 years of experience in corporate management and
electronics  business. Mr. Liu joined the Group on 5 October
2007.

Mr. Wang Wei Shi, aged 55, was appointed as non-executive
Director of the Company on 5 October 2007 Mr. Wang
graduated from Hubei Television & Radio University in the People's
Republic of China in 1992 with a bachelor's degree in electro-
mechanical engineering, and has over 35 years of experience in
the electronic business and manufacturing of fibreglass, refrigerator,
and mobile phone assembly. Mr. Wang is the brother of past
director, Mr. Wang Ya Qun.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Pang Jun, aged 45, is qualified as a lawyer in the People’s
1994. Mr. Pang graduated from Xi‘an
Bachelor's Degree of Electrical

Republic of China in
Jiootong  University with a
Engineering and Automation and a Master's Degree in Science of
Economic law. Mr. Pang previously worked with RICO Group
Corporation and he has extensive experience in legal area. Mr.
Pang is currently a practicing lawyer of Beijing Anbo law Firm.

He joined the Group on 6 November 2008.

Mr. law Hon Hing Henry, aged 42 is a Fellow Certified Public
Accountant  (Practising) of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accounfants in England & Wales and a fellow member of
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. law graduated
from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor's Degree of
Social Sciences. Mr. law has exfensive experience in accounting

and auditing. He joined the Group on 3 September 2008.
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Directors, Supervisors And Senior Management

EF EFSEEMERAR

Professor Fang Min, aged 34, graduated from Zhejiang University
with a Doctorate in Computer Science and Technology Degree in
2006. He has extensive experience in computer science and
information technology area. He is currently a deputy department
head for the Electrical Mechanical Engineering Department of the
Hangzhou Normal University Qianjiang College. Professor Fang is
also a director of the Hangzhou letu Networking Technology Co.

lid. He joined the Group on 27 February 2009.

SUPERVISORS
Mr. Wang Jiangao, aged 30, is the Deputy General Manager of

Ningbo Yitai Electronic Company Llimited, a subsidiary of the
Group. Please refer to the section “Senior management” below for
details of his qualifications and experience.

Mr. Yang Lli, aged 49, is a Supervisor and does not hold any
other position in the Group. He graduated from Shanxi Television
& Radio University in 1986, and is currently the vice-president of
China Ruilian Holding Corp. He has over 28 years of working
experience in management and administration.

Mr. Wang Yinbin, aged 35, is a supervisor and does not hold
any other position in the Group. He is currently the finance
manager of Xi‘an Ruilian Modem Electronic Chemical Co., ltd.. He
graduated from Xi‘an Jiao Tong University and has over 13 years
of working experience in finance and accounting. He joined the

Group in June 2009.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wang Jiangao, aged 30, is the Deputy General Manager of
Ningbo Yitai Electronic Company Llimited, a subsidiary of the
Group. Mr. Wang graduated from China Cenfral Radio TV
University and has over 8 years of working experience in product
manufacturing. He joined the Group in May 2010.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tsao Hoi Ho, aged 46, is the financial controller of the
Group. He holds a Master of Business Administration degree from
the University of Warwick. He is a certified public accountant of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
member of Institute of Chartered Accountants of New Zealand,
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, Australasian
Institute  of Banking & Finance plus Bankers' Institute of New
Zealand. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Tsao was the
Qualified Accountant for a listed company, whose shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Tsao joined the Group in November
2008 and has over 18 years' experience in auditing, finance and

company secrefary.
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Report of the Directors

EEBWEE

The Directors present their annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL

ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS
The principal activities of the Company are the design,
manufacture and sale of intelligent controller systems for various
consumer electrical and electronic appliances and the assembly of
mobile phones. Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries

are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

Analysis of the Group's performance for the year by operafing
segments is sef out in note 11 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010

are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on page 29.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2010

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
36 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group during the year are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 32. The Company has no reserve available for distribution
to shareholders as at 31 December 2010

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Group during the year are set
out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

EEBWEE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Arficles of
Association of the Company and no resfriction against such rights
under the laws of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC’),
which will oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis o existing shareholders.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 120.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of ifs subsidiaries has purchased or
sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.

SHARE OPTIONS

As at the date of this report, no option has been granted or
agreed to be granted by the Company fo any of its Directors,
Supervisors or employees of the Company or its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors
M:r. Liu Xiao Chun
Mr. Gong Zheng Jun
Mr. Chen Zheng Tu

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zheng Yi Song

Mr. Liv Feng

Mr. Wang Wei Shi

Independent non-executive Directors
M. Pang Jun

Mr. law Hon Hing Henry

Professor Fang Min
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Report of the Directors

EEBWEE

Supervisors

Mr. Wang Jiangao (appointed on 31 May 2010)
Ms. Wang Ying [resigned on 31 May 2010}

Mr. Yang Li

Mr. Wang Yinbin

Members of the audit committee
Mr. Pang Jun (Chairman)

Mr. law Hon Hing Henry

Professor Fang Min

In accordance with Articles 89 and 112 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, the Directors and Supervisors appointed by the
Board since last shareholders’ annual general meeting shall be
elected af the coming shareholders’ general meeting for a term of
three years. A director or supervisor may serve consecutive ferms if
re-elected upon the expiration of the ferms.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors, Supervisors and senior
management are set out on page 15 to page 17.

DIRECTORS" AND SUPERVISORS" SERVICE
CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors and Supervisors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years from his/her
date of appointment as a Direcfor or, as the case may be, as a
Supervisor and thereafter subject to termination by either party
giving not less than one month’s written notice to the other party.

Save as disclosed above, no Directors or Supervisors who are
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has entered info any service confract with the Company which is
without payment of

not determinable within one year

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS" AND SUPERVISORS" INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Apart from the Directors’ and Supervisors' service confracts
disclosed above, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company or ifs subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director or a Supervisor of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Report of the Directors

EEBWEE

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES" AND
SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN THE SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2010, the interests and long positions of each
Director, Chief Executive and Supervisor of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise nofified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the minimum standards of dealing by
directors as referred fo in Rules 540 to 5.58 of the Rules
Governing the Llisting of Securities on the Growth Enferprise Market
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong limited (the "GEM Listing
Rules”], were as follows:

Ordinary shares of RMBO.10 each of the Company as at 31
December 2010:

Number of Domestic Shares
of RMB0.10 each
(the “Domestic Shares”) held

EE -FETHRAEBRESERAEAR
B IR RS

R-E-ZTF+-_A=1t—HB ARASEZE "
TETRABRESRARR AR EE(E
ERBHMEER ([ 5EREMEG] ) EXVER)
MG - HERDRESZT  BEARRRE
BEHELBEGIEINGREAFENELMH
FRcBmiEm R FR  AREBEBFBHAIZM
BERARBIFRESF EHRATRIRR EHAR
ANESA0ESSBIGAAEFTETR KK
BRECHSARA LR AH R RFa T :

RZBE—ZEF+-A=+—HBARARBREE
ARBEOI0TT ) E @R
Approximate

percentage of
shareholding in the

Approximate
percentage of

shareholding held in

Name of Director/Chief FiEEREE same class of securifies  registered capital
Executive/Supervisor AR#010t  Nature of Long/short 15 [E Rl s MER
EE/TETHAE/ HAER interest position FHERH BAER
BB (mER)EE BmitE #/ KR FRAEDL Bk
Mr. Gong Zheng Jun 91,650,000 Domestic Shares Beneficial owner long position 24.77% 18.33%
EEERAE [note 2) BEEAA HeE
91,650,0008% W & &
(M &E2)
Mr. Chen Zheng Tu 63,100,000 Domestic Shares Beneficial owner long position 17.05% 12.62%
RELxAE [note 2) ESHAA e
63,100,0008 A& &
GEY)
Mr. Yang Li 41,500,000 Domestic Shares Beneficial owner long position 11.22% 8.30%
BUfE [note 2) ERBEAA e
41,500,000 N & Bk
GEY)
Mr. Zheng Yi Song 129,500,000 Domesic Shares Inferest of controlled ~ long position 35.00% 2590%
BRNTE [note 2) corporation [note 1) &
129,500,000 71 & & REH AR R
GEY) (BF&E)
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Notes:

(n Mr. Zheng Yi Song is not a registered shareholder of the Company. His
indirect shareholding inferest in 129,500,000 shares of the Company is held
through Shenzhen Ruilian Investment Company Limited ("Shenzhen Ruilian”),
which holds a 100% direct interest in China Ruilian Holding Corporation
["China Ruilian), a registered shareholder in 129,500,000 shares of the
Company.

Both Shenzhen Ruilian and China Ruilian are established and based in the
PRC. Mr. Zheng Yi Song holds a direct interest of 32% in Shenzhen Ruilian.

12) Domestic  Shares of a nominal value of RMBO.10 each, in the registered
capital of the Company, which are subscribed for or credited as fully-paid in

Renminbi.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year did the
Directors, Chief Executives and Supervisors (including their spouse
and children under 18 vyears of age) had any inferest in, or had
been granted, or exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of

SFOJ.

Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the
Company or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement enabling
the Direcfors, Chief Executives and Supervisors of the Company to
hold any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or ifs associated
corporation.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
THE SHARES OF THE COMPANY

According fo the register of substantial shareholders maintained

under section 336 of the SFO, as at 31

were inferested in 5% or more of the Company's issued share
capital. These interests are in addition fo those disclosed above in
respect of the Directors, Chief Executives and Supervisors.

Number of

December 2010, the

Company had been nofified the following substantial shareholders’

FERRREAQXTARODHNER

BRBEEFZLBEKRPEIBKREFENE
ERRECMER RZTE—ZFF+-A=+
—H ARFEHNEUTETERREFARARA
EBITRAS% A L - Eea W EFTA
EXMBBEERESE TE2TBRAEBREEN

Approximate percentage Approximate percentage

of shareholding
in same class

of shareholding in

the registered
Name of shareholder shares held ~ Nature of interest Long/short position of securities capital
EEE R % % L&A
BRREE/ 4% FERHBE #EEME #/ %R BAFRED BAFRED
China Ruilian 129,500,000  Beneficial owner  long position 35.00% 2590%
B T B Domestic Shares B #HEH A A
[notes 1 and 2 above)
129,500,000 %1 & %
(M1 R2)
Shenzhen Ruilian 129,500,000 Interest of long position 35.00% 2590%
R Y Bt Domesfic Shares controlled HE
(nofes 1 and 2 above] corporation
129,500,000 W& Bk XEHINAEE
(ExH1R2)
Wang Ya Qun 37850,000  Beneficial owner  long position 10.23% 7.57%
THE Domestic Shares  E#m#B A e
(note 2 above)
37,850,000
(£ 3h3E2)
Martin Currie China Hedge 14,245,000 H Shares  Investment long position 1096% 2.85%
Fund Limited [note 1) manager e
14,245000/Hix AL
(BED)
Martin Currie Investment 14,245,000 H shares  Investment long position 1096% 2.85%
Management Limited (note 1) manager HE
14245000/ HEx  REKE
(B E1)
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Note:

(1) “H Sharels)" represent overseas listed foreign share(s) of a nominal value of
RMBO.10 each in the registered capital of the Company, which are listed on
the GEM and subscribed for and traded in Hong Kong dollars.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No confract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of sales and purchases for the year atiributable to
the Group's major customers and suppliers are as follows:

Sales
— the largest customer 26.0%
— five largest customers combined 40.1%
Purchases
— the largest supplier 15.3%
— five largest suppliers combined 37.1%

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE

The Company has complied with all the code provisions set out in
Appendix 15 Code on Corporate Governance Practfices of the
GEM Llisting Rules throughout the financial year ended 31

December 2010.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group, are set out in
note 40 fo the consolidated financial statements.

COMPETING INTERESTS
None of the
Company and their respective associates (as defined in the GEM

Directors, the management shareholders of the

lising Rules] had any interest in any business that directly or

indirectly competes with the business of the Group or has any
other conflicts of interest.
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Report of the Directors

EEBWEE

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year have been audited by

Messrs. Lo and Kwong C.PA. Company Llimited, who retire and,

being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment
forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Liv Xiao Chun

Chairman

Ningbo, The PRC, 28 March 2011
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BuiGaMESS

‘ . EBE I EEFERAS
LO AND KWONG C.P.A. COMPANY LIMITED
.

AUDIT « TAX » BUSINESS ADVISORY

TO THE MEMBERS OF
NINGBO YIDONG ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED
[incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability]

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ningbo
Yidong Electronic Company Llimited (the “Company’] and ifs
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group’) set out on
pages 29 to 120, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2010, and the consolidated
stafement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement  of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows, for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory nofes.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting  Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Insfitute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial

statements that are free from material misstatement.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the confents of this report. Except as described in the
basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement. However, because of the matters described in the
basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we were not able to
obtain appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BuUiGaMESS

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Material fundamental uncertainty relating to the going
concern basis

In forming our opinion, we have considered the adequacy of the
Note 2 to
statements concerning the adoption of the going concern basis,

disclosures made in the consolidated financial
being the basis on which the consolidated financial statements

have been prepared.

As explained in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements,
which indicates that the Group incurred a consolidated loss
atfributable  to  owners of the Company of approximately
RMB123,610,000 for the year ended 31 December 2010 and
had a consolidated net current liabiliies and net liabilities of
approximately RMB349,823,000 and RMB333,513,000
respectively as at 31 December 2010. The consolidated financial
stafements have been prepared on a going concern basis, the
validity of which depends upon the successful outcome of the
rearrangement for defaulled bank borrowings with its  exisfing
bankers, the cost finalization arising from disposal of properties
and prepaid lease payments, the positive cash flows expected to
be generated from the Group's future operations and successfully
obtain new working capital in order to meet the Group's future
working capifal and financial requirements.

We consider that appropriate disclosures have been made in such
consolidated financial statements concering the relevant material
uncertainty, but the inherent uncertainties surrounding the
circumstances, under which the Group might successfully continue
to adopt the going concern basis are so exireme, we have
disclaimed our opinion on material uncertainty relating fo the

going concern basis.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
SRS S

The consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustment that would be necessary if the Group failed to operate
as a going concern. Had the going concern basis not been used,
adjustments would have to be made fo reduce the value of the
Group's assets to their recoverable amounts, fo provide for any
further liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify non-current
assets and non-current liabilities as current assefs and  current

liabilities respectively.

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION: DISCLAIMER OF
VIEW GIVEN BY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Because of the significance of the matters described in the basis
for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we do not express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements as to whether they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2010 and of the loss and cash flows of the Group for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporfing Standards and as to whether the consolidated financial
stafements have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

LO AND KWONG C.P.A. COMPANY LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

Chan Chi Kei Ronald

Practising Certificate Number: P0O4255

Hong Kong
28 March 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

o mikE e

for the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—F—FFL_A=+—HIFFE

2010 2009
—E-Z2HF CZEZThF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'0O00
Bt 7 ARBTR ARETT
Turnover EERH 10 14,422 25,618
Cost of sales FisR=—JD' Wi (17,299) (66,7806)
Gross loss EEH (2,877) (41,168)
Other income E U A 10 10,175 9189
Selling and distribution expenses HEMDIEER (1,381) 682)
Administrative expenses THEA (38,889) (34,257)
Finance costs BB AR 12 (9,091) (10,076]
loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BENRRKRE
equipment and prepaid lease payments RIEMNEERZ EE (78,064) -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE BB AR Z K E 703 —
Gain on invalidation of subsidiaries 8 B B A B Uk 2 43 — 8,115
Provision for claims RIEBE 33 (4,192) (2,680)
Loss before taxation BB RIS B 13 (123,616) (71,559)
Income tax (expense) credit FrEf(FE)ER 14 (4) 430
Loss for the year FRER (123,620) (71,129)
Other comprehensive income Hit2EB A
Exchange differences arising on translation BEBIIEBOELEZE
of foreign operations 322 483
Total comprehensive loss for the year, FRAPNZHEEAEE
net of tax MERBIE (123,298) (70,6406)
Loss for the year attributable to: UTALTREFREE:
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIE RN (123,610) (70,525)
Non-controlling interests FEERHE = (10) (604)
(123,620) (71,129)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: UTALtEREZHEEARE:
Owners of the Company FiN/NETE R DN (123,288) (70,042)
Non-controlling inferests JEPE AR R (10) (604)
(123,298) (70,646)
Dividend [ = 17 — —
Loss per share BRER 18
Basic (cents per share) EXEBBRARESD) (24.72) (14.10)
Diluted (cents per share) BEEBRARESD) N/AT E A N/A i@ A
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

fx & Wil 1 iR 3 76

at 31 December 2010
= ey

2010 2009
—E-2F —EZTNF
Notes RMB'000 RMB'O00
izt ARWTR AR®T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - B MK 19 9,959 244,857
Investment properties BREME 20 1,268 1,325
Prepaid lease payments EREER 21 5,083 11,714
16,310 257,896
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 22 6,327 2,674
Trade receivables FEWE 5 8RR 23 3,158 1,800
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables ARHIE - Re Rk
H A FE U BR 5K 24 71,263 8,068
Paid in advances SYNBEERE:S 3,726 4973
Prepaid lease payments AT E K 21 242 242
Amounts due from directors fERE =B 27 17 3,082
Amounts due from related companies JE U B8 35 A R RRR 28 16 —
Pledged bank deposits EHEFRITER 29 — 10,270
Bank balances and cash RITHEHR LR ® 29 253 1,865
85,002 32974
Assets classified as held for sale FREARBIEHENEE 25 1,288 —
86,290 32,974
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEE
Trade and bills payables ENESEREERE 30 49978 47046
Other payables and accruals H b B BR SR N FE T B 49,723 59,034
Receipt in advances B K IE 6,845 8,071
Amount due to a corporate shareholder B — A AR R FIE 26 211,262 188,989
Amount due to a minority shareholder of JE A — ) B BB 2 A1 9
a subsidiary —ZLHERRFE 31 — 1,591
Amounts due to directors BT EERIE 27 6,169 7,800
Amounts due to related companies BB AR IA 28 16,919 12,016
Dividends payables & 15 B 2, 32 4,440 4,440
Provision for claims RERE 33 6,518 36,899
Bank borrowings RITEER 34 84,259 129,199
Deferred revenue i & Uz 35 - 6,000
436,113 501,085
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEEFE (349,823) (468,111)
NET LIABILITIES FEE (333,513) (210,215)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
&5 6 Wil vE ik iR 76

at 31 December 2010
=k ey

2010 2009

—®-25 -—TTNF

Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
i ARBFRE ARBTT

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXREE
Share capital % A< 36 50,000 50,000
Reserves # & (383,513) (260,225)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AT EEAELERE (333,513) (210,225)
Non-controlling interests FERER — 10

(333,513) (210,215

The consolidated financial statements on pages 29 to 120 were SH29EEFBI20NHFEEMBRERDIEEEE RN
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on  —ZF——F=H =+ /\B#t/E R X#E T3 :
28 March 2011 and are signed on its behalf by:

Liv Xiao Chun Zheng Yi Song
ZeE [ [ESEN
Director Director

EBZE EZE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ey UFAY 1 B

for the
EE=

year ended 31 December 2010
E—FFEF A=+ —HIFFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ERARAENEE
Statutory Non-
Capital surplus  Tramslafion  Accumulated controlling
Share capital reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total inferests Total
EEBB
e BX@R LRE EAGE RitE#E Mt FERES @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETRT AREBTR ARETR  ARETr ARETRL ARETR AR%TR
[Note al (Note b)
(M iEa) (Bt3Eb)
1 Jonvary 2009 “EENE-A-H 50,000 40,449 24998 3,515 [259,145) (140,183) 614 139,569)
Loss for the year FAEE - - - - (70,525) 70,525) (604 171129
Other comprehensive income for the year — FREM2EHRA - - - 483 - 483 - 483
Total comprehensive income floss] for the FRZEKA
year (BB eR - - - 483 70,525 [70,042) [604] (70,646)
At 31 December 2009 and 1 Janvary 2010 R=ZEAE+=A=1—H
R-Z-F5-A-H 50,000 40,449 24998 3998 [329,670) 210,225) 10 210,215
loss for the year FRER - - - - (123 610] (123,610) [10) 123,620)
Other comprehensive income for the year — FREM2EHRA - - - 322 - 32 - 322
Total comprehensive income {loss| FRZEKA
for the year (BR)aE - - - 322 [123,610) (123,288 (10] (123,298)
At 31 December 2010 R-2-ZH+-A=+t-H 50,000 40,449 24998 4,320 (453,280) 333,513) - (333,513)
Notes: I
(a) Capital reserve (a) EREE
Capital reserve includes the share premium arising from the issuance of BRBEEBAEAATBRTHRELENRAEERE
H-shares after deduction of the respective share issuance costs of the BB G BTRA o
Company.
(b) Statutory surplus reserve (b) FERBAES
The Articles of Association of the Company and its subsidiaries established AATREAREARKMB(HE DRI HER
in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC") require the appropriation of RAMATERMNET SEABRERE L
10% of their profit after income tax determined under the PRC accounting S BB A REFERIOVBRAEERSAES
standards each year to the statutory surplus reserve until the balance reaches B AT EB AL ESER MR AN50%5IF -
50% of the registered share capital. According to the provision of the BEAATNATNSEME  E—RERT  E T
Company's Arficles of Association, under normal circumstances, the statutory BORABLETREERNEE BRARARBRAE
surplus reserve shall only be used for making up losses, capitalisation into AFMEERSE REETRLABLBRRA
share capital and expansion of the Company’s production and operation. For M= 2FESAEANBERCLRETMBALY
the capitalisation of statutory surplus reserve info share capital, the remaining 25% o
amount of such reserve shall not be less than 25% of the registered share
capital.
32 NINGBO YIDONG ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED ERIZREFRHBBERAAE



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HRoBamErs

for the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—T—FFF+_A=+—HIFE

2010

2009

—E-ZBF —TTNF
RMB'000
ARBTRE ARMTT

RMB’000

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
loss before taxation
Adjustments for:
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of investment properties
Finance costs
Government granfs recognised as income
Impairment loss recognised in respect of
property, plant and equipment
Impairment loss recognised in respect of inventories
Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade
receivables
Impairment loss recognised in respect of
other receivables
Impairment loss recognised in respect of
amount due from a shareholder
Impairment loss recognised in respect of
amounts due from a related companies
Reversal of impairment loss recognised
in respect of trade receivables
Reversal of impairment loss recognised
in respect of other receivables
Write-off of other receivables
Bank interest income
Provision for claims
loss (gain) on disposal of property , plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments
Gain on invalidation of subsidiaries
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

REEK

B 7% AT RS 18
ERTIIEBAE:

#EFENHERR

ME - BENRZRENE

BREWMEFE

B E R

R AW ANBT &
LR - BB MR AR A
VRN R

S1F B R R RUE B 1R
ﬁ?%ﬁ%%;ﬁw%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ

L fth 8 W BR R RE SR R RLE B 1R

W — B BUR RIRE R
BB B 18

T 8 U B8 5 2 B 3RO R
BB & 18

B BB 5 e YRR SR AR
AR B 1R

Fk [B] Bt E b 78 Ui PR SRR BB A
B B 18

H A 1 R R 8
RITH B U A

REBE

HEME  BMEERENM
BREERNEE )
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HE— R B AR /UK S
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(123,616)
239
6,202
57
9,091
(6,000)
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738

482
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(519)
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(234)
4,192
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HRoBamEs

for the year ended 31 December 2010
R -—F—FF+-_A=1+—HIFE

2010 2009
—E-BF —_TThF
RMB’'000 RMB'0O00
AR®T R ARKTT
Operating cash flows before movements EELESHBINEERSRE
in working capital (14,582) (13,367)
(Increase) decrease in inventories &' Ogm) R (4,564) 4,434
(Increase] decrease in trade receivables JfE W E 5 BR 3 (38 0n) R (2,435) 3,757
Increase in prepayments, deposits BNRIE - RER
and other receivables H b fE U BR FRAE 0 (1,136) (8,082)
(Increase) decrease in paid in advances BEAS TR F (38 hn) Rk A (1,184) 8,798
Increase in amount due from a shareholder JfE U — 4 % 3R FRIAE 0 — (221)
Decrease [increase) in amounts due from directors JE U T = SR IE R A (8 n) 3,065 (2,549)
Increase in amounts due from related companies & Uk B8 38 N m) FRIE B N (16) (3,209
Increase (decrease) in trade and bills payables FES B 5 BR 3 R BR300 Ot 4 2,936 (33,152)
(Decrease] increase in other payables and accruals Hitb AT BR RN 5T & A OBl 2)
211 (7298) 18730
Decrease in receipt in advances T8 Ug 3R I8 R (788) (2,825)
Increase in amount due to a corporate shareholder JEAS — &5 AR B FIE S N 22,570 47,576
Decrease in amount due to a minority shareholder of — FET — R M B A &l #) — & D Bk
a subsidiary RRIE R (1,591) —
Decrease in amounts due to directors FEfTE S FRIE R D (1,631) (665)
Increase in amounts due fo related companies J& A<f 8 38 2 B SRR AN 4,903 —
Decrease in provision for claims REBEFER D (34,573) (6,102)
CASH [USED IN) GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 484 %1 (7 ) i 8 B & (36,324) 13,123
Income taxes paid ENPEH (4) (442)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING REEK(FTRAFMBEHESFE
ACTIVITIES (36,328) 12,681
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZTH
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary & — il Y /88 2 R PR 45 3R 0E 1,597 —
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BERZRER
equipment and prepaid lease payments B 78 E R H) P15 5KIR 85,072 685
Direct cost and tax paid for the transaction of disposal % - BMERZHELE
of property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease X HRFENE R X2
payments HEERERERAK (5,166) —
Decrease [increase) in pledged bank deposits BB ITEITOR D, GE ) 10,270 (3,940)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEVE BMELR®B (3,148) (14,399
Interest received 2 UF S 234 632
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES B EEBFB (B BE&FHE 88,859 (17022)

ol
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HRoBamErs

for the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—T—FFF+_A=+—HIFE

2010 2009

—E-ZBF —TTNF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTRT AR¥TTT

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Government grant received

New bank borrowings raised
Repayment of bank borrowings
Interest paid

Repayment to a related company

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

Effect of foreign exchanges rate changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END
OF THE YEAR,

Represented by

— bank balances and cash

— cash and cash equivalents included in assets
classified as held for sale

MEED

B WK AT 8 B &
HIERITIEE
BERTEE
2 F 8

A — 2% B 58 A A & K

MEETDFAREFHE

REeRREEEBRERLER

FANRERREEEEE

P2

FRNBERBELEFERE

B
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_ 129,199
(44,940)  (124,670)
(9,091)  [10,076)
_ (1,170)
(54,031) (717)
(1,500) (5,058)
1,865 6923
(2) -

363 1,865
253 1,865
110 -
363 1,865
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fx o Wil 15 ¥ 7 b 5

for the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-F—FF+-A=1T—HALFE

36

GENERAL INFORMATION

Ningbo Yidong Electronic Company Limited (the “Company”)
is a joint sfock limited liability company established in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and ifs shares are
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market ("GEM") of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong limited (the “Stock Exchange’). The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the "Corporate
information” section to the Annual Report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi ("RMB”). Other than the subsidiary established in
Hong Kong which functional currency is Hong Kong Dollars
("HKD"), the functional currency of the Company and it
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group'] is RMB.

The principal activities of the Group are the design,
manufacture and sale of intelligent confroller systems  for
consumer electrical and  electronic  appliances and  the
assembly of mobile phones in the PRC.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

As at 31 December 2010, the Group reported net current
liabilities and net liabilities of approximately
RMB349,823,000 and RMB333,513,000 respectively. The
condition indicates the existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and therefore it may be unable
fo realise its assefs and discharge ifs liability in the normal
course of business. Nevertheless, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group will have
sufficient working capital to meet its financial obligations as
and when they fall due for the next twelve months from 31

December 2010 that:

[ the directors of the Company anficipates that the
Group will generate positive cash flows from its future
operations and successfully obtain new working capital
from a corporate shareholder that confirmed to provide
continuous financial support of the Group;

NINGBO YIDONG ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED
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2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION — Continued

(i)

(i)

as at 31 December 2010, the Company had two
bank borrowings totaling approximately
RMB84,259,000 in which their maturity dates had
been expired without setflement. Up to the date of this
report, the Company had settled of the bank
borrowings approximately RMB65989,000 and  still
had totaling approximately RMB18,270,000 defaulted
bank borrowings not yet setfled. The Company had
obtained a consent letter from one of the bank with
defaulted bank borrowings of approximately
RMB14,750,000 for not taking any legal actions
fowards the Company for claiming the defaulted
balances and any related penalties and costs up to
the date 30 April 2011. The directors of the Company
is under negotiation with the bankers for the
rearrangement  of the captioned defaulted bank
borrowings and considered that the contingent liabilities
arising from the consequences of default of bank
borrowings are immaterial.

the Company had disposed the properties and
prepaid lease payments with a carrying value of
approximately  RMB226,503,000 together with the
related direct costs and tax for the transaction of
approximately RMB5,166,000 for a fotal consideration
of approximately RMB153,605,000 during the year.
Approximately RMB145,438,000 of the sales proceeds
has been received up to the date of report. The
remaining balances of approximately RMB8,167,000,
including (1] of approximately RMB4,728,000 which
have been agreed to be directly paid by the
purchaser to the Company's constructors on behalf of
the Company; and (2) of approximately RMB3,439,000
which used to pay for further development costs on
the properties by the purchaser on behalf of the
Company as the purchaser consider the costs should
be bome by the Company. However, the Company
not agreed with the purchaser's point of view and up
to the date of the report, the Company is still under
cost finalization between the purchaser and those
suppliers. The remaining balances of the consideration
of approximately RMB3,439,000 had been fully
impaired. The directors of the Company considered
that potential further additional consfruction  cost
incurred  arising from the disposal of properties and
prepaid lease payments is immaterial; and

2.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION — Continued

(iv]  to raise funds by way of issuing additional equity and/
or debt securities and fo negotiate with certain bankers
to obtain additional banking facilities, if necessary.

Accordingly, the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
stafemenfs on a going concern basis. Should the Group be
unable fo continue to operate as a going concemn,
adjustments would have to be made to the consolidated
financial statements to write down the value of assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for further liabilities which
might arise and to reclassify non-current assefs and non-
current liabilities as current assets and current  liabilities,
respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following

new and revised standards, amendments and inferpretations

['new and revised HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

HKFRSs (Amendments) Amendment to HKFRS 5 as part of
Improvements to HKFRSs 2008

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements fo HKFRSs 2009

Hong Kong Accounting Standard ["HKAS') Consolidated and Separate Financial
27 (Revised) Statements

HKAS 39 (Amendments) Eligible Hedged liems

HKFRS 1 (Revised) Firsttime Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

HKFRS 1 [Amendments) Additional Exemptions from Firstime Adopters

HKFRS 2 [Amendments| Group Cash-setfled Share-based Payment
Transactions

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations

HK-Interpretation ("Int") 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause

Distributions of Non-Cash Assefs to Owners

HKIIFRIC) — Int 17

NINGBO YIDONG ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (”HKFRSS”) — Continued

Except as described below, the adoption of the New and
Revised HKFRSs had no material effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the current or prior
accounting periods.

HKFRS 3 (Revised 2008) Business Combinations and
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate

Financial Statements

The Group applies HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations
prospectively to business combinations for which the
acquisiion date is on or after 1 January 2010. The
requirements in HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements in relation to accounting for
changes in ownership interests in a subsidiary after control is
obtained and for loss of control of a subsidiary are also
applied prospectively by the Group on or affer 1 January
2010.

As there was no transaction during the current year in which
HKFRS 3 (Revised] and HKAS 27 (Revised] are applicable,
the application of HKFRS 3 (Revised), HKAS 27 (Revised)
and the consequential amendments to other HKFRSs had no
effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the current or prior accounting periods.

Result of the Group in future periods, may be affected by
future transactions for which HKFRS 3 (Revised), HKAS 27
[Revised) and the consequential amendments to the other
HKFRSs are applicable.

3.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (”HKFRSS”) — Continued

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause ("HK Int 57)
clarifies that term loans that include a clause that gives the
lender the unconditional right to call the loans af any time
("repayment on demand clause”) should be classified by the
borrower as current liabilities. The Group has applied HK Int
5 for the first time in the current year. Hong Kong
Inferprefation 5 requires retrospective application.

In order to comply with the requirements set out in HK Int 5,
the Group has changed its accounting policy on
classification of term loans with a repayment on demand
clause. In the past, the classification of such term loans were
determined based on the agreed scheduled repayment dates
set out in the loan agreements. Under HK Int 5, term loans
with a repayment on demand clause are classified as current
liabilities.

NINGBO YIDONG ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINAN

CIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (”HKFRSS”) — Continued

The Group has not early applied the following new or
revised standards, amendments or interpretations that have

been issued but are not vet effective:

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRS T (Amendments)
HKFRS T (Amendments)
HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 9
HKAS 12 (Amendments)

HKAS 24 (Revised)
HKAS 32 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 [Amendments)

HK(IFRIC] — Int 19

1 January 2011, as appropriate.

Effective for annual periods beg

Effective for annual periods beg

Effective for annual periods beg

Improvements fo HKFRSs 2010 except for the

amendments to HKFRS3 (Revised in 2008),

HKFRS 7, HKAS 1 and HKAS 28’

limited Exemption from Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for Firsttime Adopters®

Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed
Dates for Firsttime Adopters®

DisclosuresTransfers of Financial Assefs®

Financial Instruments”
Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Asseis®

Related Party Disclosures*
Classffication of Rights lssues?

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement*

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity
Instruments®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 and
Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 February 2010.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011.

inning on or after 1 July 2011.
inning on or after 1 January 2012.

inning on or after 1 January 2013.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (”HKFRSS”) — Continued

HKFRS @ Financial Instruments (as issued in  November
2009) infroduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (as revised in November 2010) adds requirements

for financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement are subsequently measured at
either amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the confractual cash flows, and that
have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair values at
the end of subsequent accounting periods.

In relation to financial liabilities, the significant change relates
to financial liabilities that are designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for
financial liabilities that are designated as at fair value
through profit or loss, the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is aftributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the presentation of the effects of changes in
the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would
creafe or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
Changes in fair value atfributable to a financial liability’s
credif risk are not subsequently reclassified fo profit or loss.
Previously, under HKAS 39, the enfire amount of the change
in the fair value of the financial liability designated as at fair
value through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

NINGBO YIDONG ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (”HKFRSS”) — Continued

HKFRS @ is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures [as revised in 2009)
clarifies and simplifies the definition of related parties. It also
provides for a partial exemption of related party disclosure
to governmentrelated entities for transactions with the same
government or entities that are controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by the same govemnment.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
pofential impact of these new/revised HKFRSs and the
directors so far concluded that the application of these
new / revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Llisting of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong limited and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair value, as explained in
the accounting policies sef out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled b\/ the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as fo obtain benefits from
its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are statement  of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition

included in the consolidated

and up fo the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continved

Basis of consolidation — Continued

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries fo bring their accounting policies
info line with those used by other members of the Group.

All infra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-confrolling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. Prior to 1 January 2010,
losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in excess of
the non-controlling interests in the subsidiary's equity were
allocated against the interests of the Group except fo the
extent that the non-controlling interests had a binding
obligation and were able to make an additional investment
to cover the losses.

Business combinations

Acquisitions  of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in @
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group fo the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values at
the acquisition date, except that:

J deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continved

Business combinations — Continved

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment fransactions of the acquiree or the
replacement of an acquiree’s share-based payment
fransactions with share-based payment transactions of
the Group are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment; and

e  assefs (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinved Operations are
measured in accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity inferest in the acquiree [if any] over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assefs acquired and the liabilities assumed. |If, after
re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer's previously held inferest in the acquiree (if anyl,
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and enfifle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity's net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’  proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assefs. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a fransaction-by-fransaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling inferests are measured
at their fair value or another measurement basis required by
another standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Business combinations — Continued

Where the consideration the Group fransfers in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a
confingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured af its acquisition-date fair value
and considered as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
confingent consideration that qualify as measurement period
adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments being made against goodwill or
gain on bargain purchase. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the measurement period about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date.
Measurement period does not exceed one year from the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of
the confingent consideration that do nof qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how the
contingent consideration is classified. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates and its subsequent setflement is accounted
for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified
as an asset or liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent liabilities and Confingent Assels, as appropriate,
with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured fo fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.

Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior fo the
acquisifion dafe that have previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest
were disposed of.

Changes in the value of the previously held equity interest
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity before the acquisition date are reclassified to profit
or loss when the Group obtains control over the acquiree.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continved

Business combinations — Continved

The minority interest in the acquiree was initially measured at
the minority inferest’s proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
the acquiree.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, if any, and
is presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
fo each of the cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in @
reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the
unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and
then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit
and loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
defermination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continved

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represenfs amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sale of goods and sale of scrap materials are
recognised when goods are delivered and fitle has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial assef is accrued on a fime
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate opp|icob|e, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that assef's nef
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative  purposes (other than construction in progress)
are sfated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as fo write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment other than properties
under construction less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straightline method. The
estimated  useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees
and, for qualifying assefs, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.  Such
properties are classified to the appropriafe categories of
property, plant and equipment when complefed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assefs, on the same
basis as other property assefs, commences when the assets
are ready for their infended use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continved

Property, plant and equipment — Continved

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected fo arise from the confinued use of the assef. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposo| or refirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Buildings under development for future owner-occupied
purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for
production or for administrative purposes, the amortisation of
prepaid lease payments provided during the construction
period is included as part of costs of buildings under
construction. Buildings under construction are carried at cost,
less any identfified impairment losses. Depreciation of
buildings commences when they are available for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn renfals and
/ or for capital appreciation. Investment properties include
land held for undefermined future use, which is regarded as
held for capital appreciation purpose.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at
cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation s
recognised so as to write off the cost of investment
properties over their estimated useful lives and after taking
infto account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount
of the investment properties under construction.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continved

Investment properties — Continved

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permonenﬂ\/ withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
assef [calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the assef] is included
in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Leasing

leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership fo the lessee. All other leases are clossified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straightline basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operafing lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straightline basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
paftern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent renfals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received fo enter info
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straightline basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
fime pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continved
Land use rights

Payment for obtaining land use is considered as operating
lease payment. land use rights are stated at cost less
accumulated  amortisation  and  accumulated  impairment
losses. Amortisation is charged to consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the rights using the
straightline method.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
enfity, fransactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies| are recorded in the
respective functional currency [i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are refranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the dafe when the fair value was defermined.
Non-monefary items that are measured in terms of hisforical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the refranslation of monefary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary item
that forms part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case, such exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income in the
consolidated financial statements and will be reclassified
from equity to profit or loss on disposal of foreign operation.
Exchange differences arising on the refranslation of non-
monetary items carried af fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period except for exchange differences arising
on the refranslation of non-monetary items in respect of
which gains and losses are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange
differences are also recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continved

Foreign currencies — Continued

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assefs and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are franslated info the presentation currency of the
Croup li.e. RMB) af the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of the reporting period, and their income and expenses
are franslated at the average exchange rafes for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during  the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing af the
dates of fransactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
it any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation
reserve.

From 1 January 2010 onwards, on the disposal of a foreign
operation, all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation affributable to the owners
of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss. In addition,
in relation fo a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are
re-aftributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals,
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants
Government grants are not recognised unfil there s
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the

additions attaching to then and that the grants will be
received.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continved

Government grants — Continved

Govemnment grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systemafic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are infended to compensate. Government grants related to
depreciable assefs are recognised as deferred revenue in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to
profit or loss over the useful lives of the related assets. Other
government grants are recognised as revenue over the
periods necessary fo match them with the cosfs for which
they are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis.
Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

The benefit of a government loan received on or after 1
January 2009 at a below-market rate of interest is treated
as a government grant, measured as the difference between
proceeds received and the fair value of the loan on initial
recognition.

Assets held-for-sale

Assefs or disposal groups are classified as held for sale if
their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale fransaction rather than through confinuing use. This
condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly
probable and the assefs or disposal groups are available for
immediate sale in their present condition.

Assefs or disposal groups classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of the assets' or disposal groups’
previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF")
and state-managed refirement benefits schemes are charged
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entifling them to the confributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Taxation

Income fax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for
current fax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred fax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in  the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assefs and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able fo control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probob|e that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which fo ufilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probob|e that sufficient taxable proﬁts will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continved

Taxation — Continued

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is seftled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
[and tax laws] that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of reporting period.

The measurement of deferred fax liabilities and assefs reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or seftle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in to profit or loss,
except when it relates fo items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising  from
development activities (or from the development phase of an
internal  project] is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

e the infention fo complefe the infangible asset and use
or sell it:

e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

J how the intangible asset will generate probable future

economic benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the infangible assef; and

J the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continved

Research and development expenditure — Continued

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
infangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criferia listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure s
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it s
incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amorfisation and accumulated impairment losses, on  the
same basis as infangible assefs acquired separately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party fo the confractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initio”y measured
at fair value. Transaction cosfs that are directly atiributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assefs or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly aftributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assefs within
the time frame esfablished by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continved
Financial instruments — Continued

Financial assets — Continued

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rafe is
the rafe that exactly discounts estimated useful cash receipts
lincluding all fees paid or received that form an infegral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts] through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where oppropriate, a shorter period to
the nef carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

loans and receivables

loans and receivables are non-derivafive financial assets with
fixed or deferminable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including frade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, amounts due from directors/related companies,
pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses [see accounting policy
on impairment loss on financial assefs below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued
Financial instruments — Continued
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment af
the end of each reporfing period. Financial assets are
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more evenfs that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assefs have been affected.

For all other financial assefs, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

—  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
countferparty; or

—  breach of confract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

—  the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables and other receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period of 90 days, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assefs carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the original effective interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued
Financial instruments — Continued
Impairment of financial assets — Continved

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
excepfion of frade receivables and other receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. VWhen
trade receivables and other receivables are considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

For financial assefs measured at amorfised cost, i, in @
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

BEAGHE - &
SWMIA — &
EREERE — &

MERAIRZEREEMS  REE
BREEFAEERNESMEERRT
MZEREFBZ2EFARRSRER
BERzEZHFE ZBEREBEESER
EREEED -

BAEEREEMNE  eREEZRE
EERRREBERYD  HEZEEEE
HERN HEREEDEBEREERE
mipd - BEREZREEZEHNIER
AR - W85 ERERWAR S EX
Yem - RIS BERRB M - AR BB
EME 2 RBAFABRERA °

RIRBERAFEZEREEMS © M
RERSE REBSESBERLD M
AR R B EERREBRREE
SHER ATAERZREEBRSSB
BaREAEE EZEERNERLRMERH
ZEEEMSEAEYEERRBEZR
ATNEBZHEHKA -

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 “E-TEER 59



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fx o Wil 15 ¥ 7 b 5

for the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-F-FF+-A=1—HALFE

4.

60

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continved

Financial instruments — Continued
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
confractual arrangements entered info and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The Group's financial liabilities comprise other
financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments through the expected life of the financial
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and bills payables,
other payables and accruals, amounts due to a corporate
shareholder/a minority shareholder of a subsidiary/directors/
related companies, dividends payables, provision for claims
and bank borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective inferest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded af
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued
Financial instruments — Continued

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assefs are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assefs. On
derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity s
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation.
Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to setile the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncerfainties  surrounding  the obligation.  Where a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to seftle
the present obligations, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect is material).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continved

Impairment losses on tangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policies in respect of
goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its fangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is esfimated in order fo
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. In addition,
infangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets
not vyet available for use are tested for impairment annuadlly,
and whenever there is indication that they may be impaired.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced fo its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried af a revalued amount under another
Standard, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that Standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased fo the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another Standard,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation increase under that Standard.

Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of

financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and
shortterm deposits with a maturity of three months or less.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continved

Related parties

A party is considered fo be related to the Group if:

(a)

(b)
(c)
(d)

(e)

(f

(g

the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is confrolled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; li) has an interest in
the Group that gives it significant influence over the
Group; or (i) has joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a ]oinﬂy-confro”ed entity;

the party is @ member of the ke\/ management
personnel of the Group or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);

jointly
controlled or significonﬂy influenced by or for which

the party is an enfity that is confro||ed,

significant  voting power in such entity resides with,
direcﬂ\/ or indirecﬂy, any individual referred to in (d) or
le); or

the party is a posT—emp|oymenT benefit p|on for the
benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.

(b)

(g
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in Note 4, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimated and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions fo accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the esfimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgement in applying the entity’s accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimates [see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the entity’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Coing concern consideration

The assessments of the going concemn assumptions involve
making judgment by the directors of the Company, af a
parficular point of time, about the future outcome of events
or conditions which are inherently uncertain. The directors of
the Company considers that the Group has ability to
continve as a going concern and the major events or
conditions, which may give rise fo business risks, that
individually or collectively may cast significant doubt about
the going concern assumptions are sef out in Nofe 2.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY — Continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainly at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives, affer taking info
account their estimated residual values. The determination of
the useful lives and residual values involve management's
estimation. The Group assesses annually the residual value
and the useful life of the property, plant and equipment and
it the expectation differs from the original estimate, such
difference may impact the depreciation in the year and the
estimate will be changed in the future period.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade receivables

The Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of its
customers and adjusts credit limits based on payment history
and the customers’ current creditworthiness, as determined
by the review of their current credit information. The Group
confinuously monitors  collections and  payments  from its
customers and maintains a provision for estimated credit
losses have historically been within the Group's expectations
and the Group will continue to monitor the collections from
customers and maintain an appropriate level of estimated
credit losses.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of other receivables

The policy for recognition of impairment loss of other
receivables of the Group is defermined by the management
based on the evaluation of collectability and management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each receivables.

5.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY — Continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty — Continued

Impairment loss recognised in respect of property, plant and
equipment

The impairment loss for property, plant and equipment are
recognised for the amounts by which the carrying amounts
exceed their recoverable amounts, in accordance with the
Group's accounting  policy. The recoverable amounts  of
property, plant and equipment have been determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require  the
use of estimates such as the fulure revenue and discount
rates.

Provision for claims

During the current and prior years, the Group had been
involved in cerfain litigations and  claims in  respect of
overdue payment of consfruction works, overdue frade
payables and bank borrowings (Note 30 and 34). The
directors of the Company determine the provision for claims
based on their best estimates according tfo their
understanding of legal advice. Where the final outcome of
the claim and negofiation with the respective bank and
creditors is different from the estimation made by the
directors of the Company, such difference will impact the
provision for claims in the year in which such determination
is finalised.

/mpa/fmenf of inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aging analysis af
the end of each reporting period, and makes allowance for
obsolete and slowing-moving inventory items identified that
are no longer suitable for sale. The management estimates
the net realisable value for finished goods based primarily
on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions.
The Group carries out an inventory review on a product-by-
product basis at the end of each reporfing period and make
allowance for obsoletes items.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 5.

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY — Continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty — Continued
Income taxes

The Group is subject to income tfaxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations  for which the ulimate tax defermination s
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amount that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period which such defermination is made.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital fo ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the refurn to shareholders through optimisation of
the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt which
includes bank borrowings as disclosed in Note 34, amounts
due fo a corporafe shareholder, directors and related
companies as disclosed in Notes 26, 27 and 28
respectively. Pledged bank deposits and bank balances and
cash as disclosed in Note 29 and equity atiributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital
and reserves. The direcfors of the Company review the
capifal structure on a regular basis. As a part of this review,
the directors of the Company consider the cost of capital
and the associated risks, and take appropriate actions to
adjust the Group's capital structure. The overall strategy of
the Group remained unchanged during the two years ended

31 December 2010 and 2009.

BAEESTHEREFTTHBERE
EMNFERE - &

A THABAEENETERER — &
B 13

AEBAGBMETRDERENAER
BEEMSUHBGBRSEFLARERE -
REFEXEBREF  HEXFRFAEMP
FEREBEEELTEE - WZEFF
HHERREERETELFNEED
Al AZEFZR8TEFLARETH
BRPT ST SR R B4 -

EXRERERE

AEEEEREAREARASEE T
EREFELEEE REERELE
BRhEZZEANBERE BRR®R
RABH -

AEENEAGBEREER  BERMT
fEE(R K E34mE) - BAEARR
EERBEERRRAMDRNRME2 - 27
K284 FE) - BHEIMIRITHEKIA RIRITH
BRRe (R F0RB) R ARREEA
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W — 80 ARBEFEEEEARK
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7.

68

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

7. BHERER

Categories of financial instruments ERMIAEHR
2010 2009
—E-BF —ZTTNF
RMB'000 RMB'O00
ARETRT ARBETT
Financial assets THEE
loan and receivables (including cash and B3 K e UL BR 3R
cash equivalents): (BREBEEIREEEY)
Trade receivables BWE SRR 3,158 1,800
Deposits and other receivables & & E Ath B UL R K 71,195 5,869
Amounts due from directors FE W E =B 17 3,082
Amounts due from related companies Ji& U5 8 338 2 m) ROR 16 —
Pledged bank deposits BHEMRITER — 10,270
Bank balances and cash RITEHRERS 253 1,865
74,639 22,886
Financial liabilities THEE
Other financial liabilities measured BEHEKATTENEA
at amortised cost: TRIBE
Trade and bills payables ENESERERE 49,978 47,046
Other payables and accruals Hfth & BR SR K FE 5T B 49,723 59,034
Amount due to a corporate shareholder Bt — &0k AR R A 211,262 188,989
Amount due to a minority shareholder of ER—FHMBARN—&

a subsidiary DB IE R A — 1,591
Amounts due to directors B EEHIE 6,169 7,800
Amounts due to related companies EREEARRIE 16,919 12,016
Dividend payables & 151 AR 2, 4,440 4,440
Provision for claims BEREE 6,518 36,899
Bank borrowings RITEE 84,259 129,199

429,268 487014

1
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, amounts due
from directors, amounts due from related companies, pledged
bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and bills
payables, other payables and accruals, amount due to a
corporate shareholder, amount due to a minority shareholder
of a subsidiary amounts due to directors, amounts due to
related companies, dividend payables, provision for claims
and bank borrowings are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk and interest rafe risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

The Group has ftransactional currency  exposures.  Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by a subsidiary of
the Company in currencies other than the subsidiary's
functional currencies. In addition, certain portion of the trade
and other receivables, bank balances and cash, trade and
other payables are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency to which they relate.

The following table shows the Group's exposure at the end
of reporting period fo currency risk arising from recognised
assets and liabilities denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the entity to which they related.

MBRBREENEREREXR

AEBNTIZCHTEABERIESERN -
BekEMERER BRESZAE
R R ERRRIE  BRRITFRER
THRBHEERES BNESERRLREER
Hiv N BRANEFTER BN —RZX
ABRRFKE BAHBRR -2 #HK
RRE EBNEZERE ENHEEQF
RE - EARE PREELRRITEE
MHEBREEEMERRE BRAZF
EMTANEREREMSER (¥R R
EMEER)  EERRBRLRRBDHESRAR -
BRI K % F R R A BRE SN T -
EEEEEREYEEZFRRALE U
BREFBBRMERESHEE

ERER

AEEHRXSZUEEERAR - BRARER
TEAARRBE M B AR AZHE ARSI
BEERSN BB EITIHESEEMSI 3 -
SN - BT O NE SR E M EYRIE
RITEBIRES  BHREMENKIEA
N7 BB EB AN EREE -

TRINTAEERREHERFDER
BEMABCARZAENEENIIRE
BN EESHE) TSI B E B AR

E=110
ey

N
° g

2010 2009
—®-%F —TITAF
RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBFR AREFT

Assets BE
Liabilities aE

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

54 223
(19) (361)

AEBI EINEHHHE - AT BE
BEeEiNERR INBEHEEYH
HERINER R -
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70

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES — Continved

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to a fair value inferest risk in relafion
to fixed-rate pledged bank deposits and bank borrowings
(see Note 29 and 34 for details).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
related to bank balances carried at prevailing market rate.
However, such exposure is minimal to the Group as the
bank balances are all shortterm in nature.

The Group's exposure fo interest rates on financial liabilities
is defailed in the liquidity risk management section of this
nofe.

As of 31 December 2010, it is estimated that a general 50
basis point increase or decrease in inferest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would increase or decrease
the Group's loss for the year and accumulated losses by

approximately RMB 421,000 (2009: RMB 646,000).

The above sensitivity analysis has been defermined assuming
that a change in inferest rates had occurred at the end of
each reporting period and had been applied to the
exposure fo interest rate risk for financial instruments in
existence at that date. The 50 basis point increase or
decrease represents directors’ assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the period until the
next annual reporting period. The analysis was performed
on the same basis for the year ended 31 December 2009.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group's maximum
exposure fo credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to the failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

NINGBO YIDONG ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES — Continved

Credit risk — Continuved

The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade and other debtor at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC including Hong Kong. As af
31 December 2010, the Group has certain concentration of
credit risk as 28% of the fofal trade receivables was due
from the Group's largest customer. As at 3]
2009, the Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk by any single trade debtor, with exposure spreading
over a number of counterparties and cusfomers.

December

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit rafings assigned by
international creditrating agencies.

Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk as at 31 December
2010 as ifs financial assefs due within one year was less than
its financial liabiliies due within one year. The Group had net
current liabilities of approximately RMB349,823,000 as at 31
December 2010. The liquidity of the Group depends upon the
successful outcome of the rearrangement for defaulled bank
borrowings with existing bankers, the cost finalization arising
from disposal of properties and prepaid lease payments, the
positive cash flows expected to be generated from the Group's
future operations and successfully obtain new working capital in
order to meet the Group’s future working capital and financial
requirements.  Details of which are set out in Note 2.

The following table defails the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both inferest and
principal cash flows. To the exfent that interest flows are
floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from inferest
rate curve at the end of the reporting period.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES — Continued

Liquidity risk — Continued

8. HMEEBEEMNBEREKE

— &

RBETER - &

Liquidity tables REEL K
Total
Within 1 year undiscounted Carrying
or on demand cash flow amounts
—FRAR KEEEB
ERE HWEESRE BREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®ETF T AR®ETF T AR®EF T
At 31 December 2010 R-B—-2F
+=A=+—H
Non-derivative financial liabilities: ETESRAE:
Trade and bills payables ENESRRREE 49978 49978 49978
Other payables and accruals H b JE A5 BR S0 M B BT
[ 333! 49,723 49,723 49723
Amount due to a corporate shareholder — FEft—&E A
% 3R R IE 211,262 211,262 211,262
Amounts due to directors B EERIE 6,169 6,169 6,169
Amounts due fo related companies BB EARRIE 16,919 16,919 16,919
Dividends payables FE TR B 4,440 4,440 4,440
Provision for claims RREE 6,518 6,518 6,518
Bank borrowings RITEE 89,230 89,230 84,259
434,239 434,239 429268
At 31 December 2009 R-ZBZEAF
+=A=+-—H
Non-derivative financial liabilities: INTESREIE:
Trade and bills payables EBNESEREREERE 47046 47046 47046
Other payables and accruals H it RS BR R % FE AT
B A 50034 50034 59034
Amount due fo a corporate shareholder B —2EA
B&% &R IE 188,989 188,989 188,089
Amount due to a minority shareholder of — FE{F — KB 2 R
a subsidiary —HZLHBEFIE 1,591 1,591 1,591
Amounts due to directors BT EEHRIE 7800 7,800 7800
Amounts due to related companies FEHREE QAR FE 12,016 12,016 12,016
Dividends payables FET IR B 4,440 4,440 4,440
Provision for claims R 36,899 36,899 36,899
Bank borrowings RIS 134169 134169 129,199
491084 491084 487014
FAIR VALUE 9. A¥E

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is
defermined in accordance with generally accepted pricing

models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

NINGBO YIDONG ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED

TREERSBRABENRFERENAM
RREREIMRBEENLEERNNTE

EEAETE -

BRERETRHERAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fx o Wil 15 ¥k 7 b 5

for the year ended 31 December 2010

BE—

10.

F-FES A=+ ALFEE

FAIR VALUE — Continuved

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated stafements
approximate fo their fair value due to their shortterm maturities.

financial

9. QFVHE - &

Z’X/Lx\ji%ﬂ/b

AN RRPREH

ﬁﬁﬁﬂikﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁmﬂﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ
B BIHHEsEmEENTERS -

TURNOVER AND OTHER INCOME 10. EXFERHEMYA
Turnover represents the net amounts received and receivable EXAREASERMIIATFRPEES®
for goods sold by the Group to outside customers, net of BB I & B U R IR 0 B AT H0 % B 8 AR
discounts and sales related taxes. B B B TR (& B JF R o
An analysis of the Group's turnover and other income for the REENFELERALEMMB AT :
year are as follows:
2010 2009
—E-2F —_TThF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETT
Turnover =
Sales of controller systems for consumer HEHEERREFHAMAE
electrical and electronic appliances and HERSELEHE N ERY
income from sales of small electrical WA
appliances 4,740 3,506
Sales of controller systems for mobile phones HERDEFZER SRR N
and income from sales and assembly of iﬁ%iﬁi & RO B %ﬁﬁ’]%)\
mobile phones 9,682 22,112
14,422 25,618
Other income N
Bank interest income |ITHE WA 234 632
Sales of scrap materials BE R R SHE R - 727
Subsidy income R A - 57
Government grants recognised BRRBBANBRTHBE
as income 6,000 128
Revenue from technical services 1 AR 75 W A — 1960
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEME  BELRERE
and equipment — 249
Exchange gain ME 3 Iz - 02
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in BE w8 PR W R SRR
respect of trade receivables (B & 18 519 1,182
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in 18 [0 BE H A FE U BR SR EE AR
respect of other receivables B S 18 2,357 3,023
Rental income a2 WA 216 —
Sundry income FETEWA 849 1,139
10,175 9,189
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11. SEGMENT INFORMATION 1. 2 &&#

The chief operating decision-maker have been identified as ARAHHITESTERBNARATSEE

the executive directors of the Company. The executive REN - RITEFBERIREENA

directors review the Group's internal reporting in order to AR HUARKBERSEER - &
assess performance and allocate resources.  Management BERBEZSREETKED - $11T

has defermined the operating segments based on these EENERAREEREK - LEZE K

reports. The executive directors consider the business from a SERBEEEVBRESENESHFZAIZ

product perspective. Specially, the Group's reportable W EETIAT

segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

a.  Sales of controller systems for consumer electrical and a. HEHEESRNEFHAmaEH S
electronic appliances and income from sales of small Ao RHENRERNBRA — #
electrical appliances — wholesalers. g o

b.  Sales of controller systems for mobile phones and b. HERBDEFEZEHINSRASGRHER
income from sales and assembly of mobile phones — K@mnBEROWA — BB -
wholesalers.

/4 NINGBO YIDONG ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED BERIEREFROBERDA



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fx o Wil 15 ¥ 7 b 5

for the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—T—FFF+_A=+—HIFE

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION — Continved

The following is an analysis of the the Group's tumnover and

results by reportable segment:

For the year ended 31 December

Wholesalers — Sales
of controller systems
for consumer electrical
and electronic appliances
and income from sales of

1. 2ER — =&

RNEEEA L% D 502
EoHWOT

BE+ZA=1T—-HILFE

Wholesalers — Sales
of controller systems
for mobile phones
and income from sales
and assembly of

small electrical appliances mobile phones Elimination Consolidated
HEE - HEHEER HEH - HERDER
RETRARNEHBEAS RURZARHFEEER
RHEENMEERNRA RBEFHRA HsH B
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
ZE-2E “TTNF ZE-%F "“ZTTNF CZB-%F "“ZENF ZB-BE “IZEINAF
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'O00  RMB'000 RMB'O00  RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT ARBTR ARETT AR¥TR ARETT ARETR ARETR
Turnover BEHE
— External sales - HNEE 4,740 3,506 9,682 22112 - - 14,422 25,618
— Inter segment sales - HHEHEE - - 96 1,613 (94) (1,613 - -
Total @t 4,740 3,506 9,778 23,725 (96) (1,613 14,422 25,618
Segen resuls PBEE 6241 (23450 (34130  [43490) - W03 (66940)
Bank interest income RTMBRA 234 632
Unallocated revenve APERA 7201 1,139
Unallocated expenses APEMX (36) (629)
Finance costs BARK (9,091) (10,076)
loss on disposal of property, plont ond  HEWE - BEREZER
equipment and prepaid lease ARBEERZEER
payments (78,064) -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE-RMBAR 2K 703 -
Gain on invalidation of subsidiaries RENBAR K& - 8115
Provision for claims RERE (4,192) 13,800)
Loss before taxation hHAER (123,616) (71,559
Income tox [expense] credit FEREESL 4) 430
loss for the year FREER (123,620 (71129
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76

SEGMENT INFORMATION — Continued 11.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies represent in the
results earned by each segment without allocation of central
administration costs including bank interest income, sundry
income, finance costs, loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment and prepaid lease payments, gain on
disposal of a subsidiary, gain on invalidation of subsidiaries,
and provision for claims. This is the measure reported to the
chief operafing decision maker for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

Inter segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by reportable segment:

Segment assets and liabilities

At 31 December

Wholesalers - Sales
of controller systems
for consumer electrical
and electronic appliances
and income from sales of
small electrical appliances
HEE — HEHEESR
REFRARKNEHRRAR
RHEENHERHRA

2010 2009
—E2-%2F —TThF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARBTT

DEER — &

AEHS MBS BRRARNEE GG K
RAR - HEZIMRHARDEPRITHE R
(BRERITHNEWA - BEEA - BEX
A-HEWE BELXRBLENEE
RZEE HE—RHBARzWE - P
HMEAR 2 WS M REHEB) - WEE
TERDERRBFEMEEFE L E
RREET2HNTIE -

DEEEE NIRRT TIEERTE -

UTREBRESHB2INNAEEBEENR
BENDT

THEERAER
Rt+=—A=1+—H

Wholesalers — Sales
of controller systems
for mobile phones
and income from sales
and assembly of

mobile phones Consolidated
HBE - HERBER
EHBAGRBEERSR
BRBEFNRA 58
2010 2009 2010 2009

ZE-BF “TTAF SB-BF —TINF
RMB'000  RMBOOO  RMB'O00  RMB000
ARBTR ARETT ARBTR ARMTR

Segment assefs DEEE 34,988 39980
Unallocated corporate assets APBRCEEE

Total assets BEE

Segment liabilifies NEHaE 142,638 62,855
Provision for claims RERE

Unallocated corporate liabiliies KD B ¥ BE

Total liabilities wal

66,324 250,428 101,312 290,408
1,288 462

102,600 290,870

286,957 401,258 429,595 464,113
6,518 36,899
- 73

436,113 501,085
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SEGMENT INFORMATION — Continued

Segment assets and liabilities — Continved

For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and

allocating resources between segments:

held for

than assets sales.

all assets are allocated to reportable segments other
Assefs used jointly by

reportable segments are allocated on the basis of the

revenues eamed by individual reportable segments;

and

all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other

than provision for claims. liabilities for which reportable

segments are jointly liable are allocated in proportion

to segment assets.
Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December

Wholesalers — Sales
of controller systems
for consumer electrical
and electronic appliances
and income from sales of

ENEHMRIEEZD HMEDEEIR

MEEEBDETAZ2HD M I
FIEHENBERN - J2H D H
é‘—iﬁfﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ’]’é&?ﬁﬂl%ﬂT%iﬁ%%ﬁ

PTERER BV M A ETT D BE I
- HMAERBEBSETAZHE - H
FRRBERIN - T2, 88 H R &

ENRERSBEELIETOR -

Hfth 7 5 & B

BE+-HA=+—HILFE

Wholesalers — Sales
of controller systems
for mobile phones
and income from sales
and assembly of

small electrical appliances mobile phones Unallocated Consolidated
HEH - HEHBEERE HHH - HERDEFEH
TRRNEHSERARHEE BRARHFEARERDE
PEHBHRHBA L ON AAE B
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-%F _—RTHAF CZ%-BFE _"FTTNF C"—B-BF _FTTNF -T-BF _"TTIF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR  AR®TT ARBTR ARETT ARBTR AR®TT AR®BTRT ARBTRL
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit At EH HIBH K H HEEER
or loss or segment assefs: esnmim:
Capital expenditure BARRX 958 2179 1,956 12,693 234 190 3,148 15,062
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment nE- BERRENE 1,471 658 4,731 5,610 - - 6,202 6,268
Amortization of prepaid lease payments BHRAEENE 79 1 160 2 - - 239 3
Depreciation for investment properties REMENE 19 - 38 1 - - 57 1
Impairment loss recognised in respect of inventories %7 & # R &) 5L (E A5 18 243 4,843 495 30,545 — — 738 35,388
Impairment loss recognised in respect of frade HESEYIR B RN R EREE
receivables 158 174 324 2,397 — — 482 2,571
Impairment loss recognised in respect of other A ELRRER R ERE
receivables 2,816 1,31 5,753 8,342 - - 8,569 9,653
Impairment loss recognised in respect of amounts M 1 R SRR BE R A
due from related companies AEEE - - - - - 3,746 - 3,746
Impairment loss recognised in respect of amount BN — B R R KRR R
due from a shareholder BERE - - - - - 931 931
Impairment loss recognised in respect of property, ?ﬁ%% B R R R R ES
plant and equipment - - 11,213 - - - 1,213 -
Wirite-off of other receivables gﬁﬂ}‘tﬂ“ﬁ ok gzl - 22 - 183 - - - 205
Provision for claims & - - - — 4,192 3,800 4,192 3,800
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in respect }%@M%%}WZE& A HE 2
of frade receivables HEEBE (171) (162) (348) (1,020 — — (519) (1,182)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in respect 1 [B1 5 H fth & U R 1 HE 2
of other receivables HEBE (775) (414) (1,582) (2,609) — — [2,357) (3,023)
Amounts regularly provided fo the chief operating T HARRHE FEEEEREE
decision maker but not included in the ETrEERDBESE
measure of segment profit or loss: AEOHE:
Bank inferest income HFATF B MA (77) (87) (157) (545) - - (234) (632)
Interest expense FlEHX 2,990 1,361 6,101 8,715 — — 9,091 10,076
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BE-F—FF+-A=1T—HALFE

11

/8

SEGMENT INFORMATION — Continued 11.

Turnover from customers of the corresponding vyears
confributing over 10% of the fofal turnover of the Group are
as follows:

DEER — &

REBEFE REGAKEBREXER
BERI0%M TP 22 XEEIWT

2010 2009
—®-%8F  -TINF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARBETTT

Customer Al Z25 A
Customer B2 25 B2

! Turnover from electronic appliances.

2 Turnover from mobile phones.

3 The corresponding revenue does not contribute over 10% of the total

sale of the Group in the respective year.
Geographical information

The Group's operations are located in two principal
geographical areas: the PRC (excluding Hong Kong) and
Hong Kong. The following table presents turnover for the
Group's geographical information for the years ended 31

December 2010 and 2009:

N/A i S 11,583
3,768 N/A A jE 3

‘ KEETRMIEERE -

? KERBDAEFE LR -

3 HERARBAECBEEHFEZHEREIH
THB10% °

it E & R

AEEEEMBMUAREEZTERE: A
(BABINERERE - TREINAEEBEHE
T E-EFR-FTETENF+-_A=+—H
INEE REBTRME LS EEN AR
&R

2010 2009
—®-%F —TTNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFR ARMTL

The PRC, excluding Hong Kong B (B BRI
Hong Kong i

An analysis of the carrying amount of segment assefs, and
additions to property, plant and equipment, by geographical
area in which the assefs are located has not been presented
as they are substantially located in the PRC.

14,422 20,133
— 5,485
14,422 25,618

HRABOOHBEERAERDE  BER
RENEUNPE WY EBIREER
EHE25NEEEREENDN -
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BE-F—FF+-A=1—HAILFE

12. FINANCE COSTS

13.

12. & KA
2010 2009
—®-%F —TTAF
RMB’000 RMB'O00
ARBFR ARBTL

Interest on:
— Bank borrowings wholly repayable within
one year
— Other borrowings
— Discounted bills

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

AT SRR A B
—AR—FRATHREEZ

RITEE 8,603 9157

— HA AR 488 -
—MIRTERE — 919
9,091 10,076

13. FRB A

2010 2009
—B-BF _—TTAS
RMB'OOO  RMB'00O
ARBTRE ARMTR

loss before taxation has been arrived at after charging
(crediting):

Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments
— Salaries, wages and other benefits in kind
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions

Total staff costs

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of investment properties
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments

Total depreciation and amortisation

Auditor's remuneration

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense

Impairment loss recognised in respect of property, plant
and equipment

Impairment loss recognised in respect of inventories
included in cost of sales

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
trade receivables

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
other receivables

Write-off of other receivables

Impairment loss recognised in respect of amount due
from a shareholder

Impairment loss recognised in respect of amounts due
from related companies

Net foreign exchange losses (gain)

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and
prepaid lease payments

Operating lease rentals for rented premises

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

BuAIEED IR GEA) -

BETRA(BEREEHS

—#He ITERHMET 9,071 11,009

— R IRAE R FH 3 4R 13 228
#E T KA 9,084 11,237
ME BERRKENE 6,202 6,268
REMENE 57 1
BHBENEER 239 3
IrE M EIEAE 6,498 6,272
% B B 572 704
EERRAXNEERAE 8,392 22,622
MPE - BE KRR AR

BB B 18 11,213 —
AIFEEROBERBE -

STAHER A 738 35,388

BB & 1R 482 2,571
A H At 1 LK B R T AR A

MEERE 8,569 9,653
L 7 Ui B SR 8 — 205
W — B R RIRER D

REE R - 931
e W Bl i A R A HE R Y

B 18 - 3,746
SN 5 18 (YR 25) 7% B8 36 (92)
HEME BERREBR

BENEERZEE 78,064 —
HEMENKEHEERS 928 730
HEMB ARz %= (703) -
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for the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-F—FF+-A=1T—HALFE

14. INCOME TAX (EXPENSE) CREDIT 14.

FrEB(EAX)ER
2010 2009
—E-FF —TTNF
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTFRT ARETT

Current tax BB 54 18
— Hong Kong profits tax

— PRC Enterprise Income Tax

Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT
law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT law, the tax
rate of the Company and the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from
1 January 2008 onwards.

16.5% of the

estimated assessable profit for both years. No Hong Kong

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated af

profits tax has been provided for the year ended 31
December 2010 as the Group did not generate any
assessable profit arising in Hong Kong for the year ended

31 December 2010.

The income fax expense for the year can be reconciled to
the loss before taxation per the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as follows:

— BEENEH
— FEERMAEH

- 368
(4) 62
(4) 430

REBETFECERSHE(EEMETED
REEMREBRZEBRGH B =-FFN
F-A—RE ARARBENEQEH
T & 325% °

BANERIEMER G5 ERT R
165%:tH - ARAKERBE-_T—F
FT-_A=t - BLFEAREFTEELE
EEERTGEN YL BERBE_F—
EFET_A=TBHUEFERBTENEH
FHR AR

FAMGHRAXARGEE2EKERA
SRR RIS IR HI AR AT

2010 2009
—E-BF —TTAF
RMB'000  RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Loss before taxation BRBATEE (123,61¢) (71,559)
Tax at applicable domestic tax rate HERABRAMRETENTRIE (30,875) (17.380)
Tox effect of expenses not deducible for MMM E AT
tax purpose MR E 3,321 3,047
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose Bt %t % il & & 78 & 5 Y A B9
%5 & (176) (2,033)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised WEERHEBEEZHEEE 23,387 5110
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences 7 i 52 A 40 B & B
not recognised ERENHBEE 4,347 11,256
Over-provision in prior year BEFEBBEMG — (430)
Income tax expense (credit) for the year FRFEHREX(ER) 4 (430)

80 NINGBO YIDONG ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED
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15. STAFF COSTS (EXCLUDING DIRECTORS' 15 BEIRA(TREEENS)

EMOLUMENTS)

2010 2009
—E-FF “TINF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTTE ARETE

Salaries, wages and other benefits in kind
Retirement benefit scheme contributions

HONG KONG

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (“the
MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for its Hong Kong employees. The
MPF  Scheme is a defined confribution refirement plan
administered by independent frustees, Under the MPF
scheme, each of the Group companies (the “employer’) in
Hong Kong and its employees makes monthly contribution to
the scheme a 5% of the employee’s earning as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Llegislation. The
confributions from each of the employer and employees are
subject to a cap of HKD1,000 per month.

THE PRC, other than HONG KONG

As sfipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the
Company and those subsidiaries, which operated in the
PRC, are required fo confribute to a state-sponsored
refirement plan for all of its employees. The state-sponsored
retirement plan is responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to all retired employees. Under the state-
sponsored refirement plan, the Group has no further
obligations for the actual pension payments or postretirement
benefits beyond the annual contributions.

BAREF G 8

e IENHMEYER 8,457 9903
R 13 228

8,470 10,131

58

AEBERZHEBREREZ2EBE LRI
NTE SR B R B AR E AR Bl ME AR & A
(2Bt E) BB ESAEBRRT
HHREKRTE HBUIEAEE R
EREEE  AREERAATEEZDR
HEEBAVRABRERENSIBA(ESR
RatlERB2AIELRHR - BER
EEMHZFIAFTAL000ETRR -

B (FERI)

BRBHBENGEIMERBE AR R
EhE2ENZEWNBARARNMER
BEHBREAKRBHNE MR BHE
KEMFEBERAMBEERRKEESNZ
MERKE -  REBEZEKRBHTE K
SEBRESFHAINBAHEBERERK
& 3 SOR KR AR B AE B E AR E -
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16. DIRECTORS" AND SUPERVISORS'

82

EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine (2009:

16. EERESEMS

ESRESEHME

ten) directors and four (2009: four) supervisors were as Oz (Z2E

follows:

Year ended 31 December 2010

Name

]

T

ENSENNE(CTEEANGFE TR)ESF
NF:HB)EFNHE

BE_—_F—FFF+_H=+—HIFE

Salaries,

wages

and benefits

Fees in kind

e 2H

e REYEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTIT ARBTT

Retirement
benefit
scheme
contributions Total
BARER
FTEIfR st
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFIT ARBTT

Executive directors
Mr. Liu Xiao Chun
Mr. Gong Zheng Jun
Mr. Chen Zheng Tu

Non-executive directors
Mr. Liv Feng

Mr. Zheng Vi Song

Mr. Wang Wei Shi

Independent non-executive directors
Professor Fang Min [Note a)

Mr. Pang Jun

Mr. law Hon Hing Henry (Note a]

Supervisors

Mr. Wang Jiangoo (Note b)
Ms. Wang Ying (Note ]
Mr. Yang Li

Mr. Wang Yinbin

Total

NINGBO YIDONG ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED

BTES

AmAELLE
BEEERLE
RIELEE

FUTES
el

BRI E
IRELE

BUFHUTES
T8t (K o)
RELLE
EEELE (M)

E=
Frs ks (D)
FRELL (M)
Bt
FRIWEE

E5h

- 210 - 210
- 63 - 63
- 57 - 57
- 60 - 60
- 60 - 60
- 44 - 44
- 120 - 120
- 614 - 614

BRERETROERAT
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BE—

F-FES A=+ —ALFEE

16. DIRECTORS" AND SUPERVISORS'

EMOLUMENTS — Continued

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments — Continued

Year ended 31 December 2009

16. EEREEME — &

EEREEHE — &

BE—_FENF+-A=1—-HILFE

Salaries, Retirement
wages benefit
and benefits scheme
Name Fees in kind contributions Total
ge-1% BAREF
®E e RENEF HE-REEN st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT AR®BFTT AR®TR
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Liv Xiao Chun RIS LAE — 344 — 344
Mr. Gong Zheng Jun BEEELRE - - - -
Mr. Chen Zheng Tu BRIEL %S - 159 - 159
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Liv Feng e ks - 336 - 336
Mr. Zheng Yi Song BRMFELE - - - -
Mr. Wang Wei Shi TRELE - 57 - 57
Independent non-executive directors B FBTEE
Mr. Tang Zhen Ming (Nofe d| B R B 5% A (P 55 d) - - - -
Professor Fang Min (Note a) L (MEa) — 51 - 51
Mr. Pang Jun BELAE - 60 - 60
Mr. law Hon Hing Henry BEESLE - 50 - 50
Supervisors EE
Ms. Wang Ying (Note ¢ TR () - 49 - 49
Mr Yang Li B ks — - - -
Mr. Wang Yinbin (Note €] TRWH & (i 5Ee) - - - -
Mr. Cheng Ping [Note f) & (HEED — — — -
Total BT — 1,106 — 1,106
Notes B 5

a) Appointed on 27 February 2009.
b) Appointed on 31 May 2010.

d Resigned on 31 May 2010.

d) Resigned on 27 February 2009.
el Appointed on 12 June 2009.

f) Resigned on 12 June 2009.

No directors and supervisors waived or agreed fo waive
any emoluments for the years ended 31 December 2010

and 2009.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010

al R-ZEZAF-_A-++tRZE -

b) RZE

—EFERA=T—HRE-

c) RZZE-—TERA=+—HBIT-
d) RZFBZEAF_A-+EHBEIE-

e) wn=
f R=

EAFRATZHEZE-
ZTNFERA+T-BREHE -

BHE-T—

TERZETAF+_A=T
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16. DIRECTORS" AND SUPERVISORS' 16.

EMOLUMENTS — Continued

Senior management’s emoluments

Of the five individuals with highest emoluments in the Group,
one (2009: two) were directors of the Company whose
emolument are included in the disclosures above. The
emoluments of the remaining four (2009: three) highest paid
individuals were as follows:

EENEEMHNE - =

EREEENE

AEBLEESFMALY  —R(CF
ENLF MB)A/ARAES  EHFME
JIIREXMBBEERF - AN A (T
ZNF ZR)ESFTMHALOFHFMET:

Salaries, wages and benefits in kind
Retirement benefit scheme contributions

Their emoluments were within the following band:

e IELREDEN

2010 2009

—E-FHF —TTAF

RMB’000 RMB'O00

ARBTR AR®TT

928 1,016

R K AR F) 51 81 4 5% - —
928 1,016

WEZFHMON FUATEER

Number of employees

EEAHE
2010 2009
—E-2F —FTTIF
Nil to RMB883,420 [equivalent to TE AR#883,420T (FBER
HKD1,000,000) 1,000,0007% 7t) 4 3

No emolument have been paid by the Group to the
direcfors and supervisors of the Company or the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group, or as compensation for loss of office during the

two years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009.

84 NINGBO YIDONG ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED

HEz—_Z-ZFR-_FTZNF+-_A=+
—AIEMEFE AEETEAARIGE
EREERANVNESTMHATIAFEE
EAERBIMMAKMAREERF 2 8%
RIEABERmE -
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17.

18.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31
December 2010, nor has any dividend been proposed since
the end of the reporting period (2009: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share for the year
ended 31 December 2010 attributable to owners of the
Company is based on the consolidated loss aftributable to
owners of the Company of approximately RMB123,610,000
[2009: RMB70,525,000) and the weighted average number
of 500,000,000 shares (2009: 500,000,000 shares) in

issue during the year.

No diluted loss per share have been presented for the two
years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009 as there was
no diluted potential ordinary share outstanding for both
years.

17.

18.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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AR NERHEABRE(CBENE:

)
BRESE

HEZZE—TFF+-A=+—HLEFEHD
ARABEEANRBESREREBERIIRIE
FRAXRAFEBEAREEEBROAR
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HREBEE-_ZT-ZTFR_TTAF+_-A
=t HALEMEFELEETAERES
BEYENEBRER ALY E2IIZM
BEEENSREEESR -

—Z-TFER 85



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fx o Wil 15 ¥ 7 b 5

for the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—ET—FFF+_A=+—HIFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. % -BERRE

Medium-ferm Buildings
leasehold Computer under
buildings Leasehold Plant and and office Motor construction
in the PRC improvements machinery equipment vehicles in the PRC Total
FEIN RENE EMR #
THEF %6 BERHE BAERRE "E EERT @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
CoST A
At 1 January 2009 RZEENE-A-H 2116 27 106,783 9677 3,320 202,806 324,729
Additions NE 2614 190 263 114 — 11,881 15,062
Disposals HE - [29] (316) (688 (408) - 1,437)
Transfer &% 183,240 - - - - (183,240) -
Transferred fo investment properties (Note 20] ~ BZREWE (M320) 2,11 - - - - - 21m)
Exchange realignment EHEE - N _ _ _ _ 0
At 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2010 RZEEAF+ZAZ+-BR
“2-ZF-f-H 185,859 191 106,730 9103 2912 31,447 336,242
Additions NE 2190 4] 269 33 - 615 3,148
Disposals fe [220,111) - (178) - - - (220,289
Disposal of a subsidiory HE-RKBAR - - 147 (99) - - (146)
Transfer B 32,062 - - - - 132,062) -
Transfer to assets held for sales (Note 25) ERBEHELE - [199) 1222) 3) - - (424)
Exchange difference EX AR - ) - 3) - - 4)
At 31 December 2010 BW-2-E%+-A=t+-H - 32 106,552 9,031 2912 (=] 118,527
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION RIHE
At 1 January 2009 RZEENE-A-H 605 15 58,452 6,514 2761 - 68,347
Provided for the year FREE 180 18 5617 297 156 - 6,268
Transferred fo investment properfies (Note 20) ~ BZ & & ¥ % (M:520) 785) - - - - - 785)
Elimincted on disposals HERHH - [20) 1653 6) 1322) - (1,001
Exchange reclignment EREE - - - M - - M)
At 31 December 2009 and 1 Janvary 2010 RZZEEAF+ZA=+-HR
“2-%§-f-H - 13 63,416 6,804 2,595 - 72,828
Provided for the year FNEE - 36 5733 277 156 - 6,202
Eliminated on disposal of a subsidiary HE—-FMBARHH - - (3 13) - - (16)
Transfer to assets held for sales (Note 25) BERRERENEE(E2) - (42) 12) - - - (54)
Eliminated on disposals HERHH - - [160) - - - [160)
Exchange reclignment ERAE - - - 2) - - 2)
At 31 December 2010 R-B-B%+-A=t+-AH - 7 68,974 7,066 2,751 - 78,798
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ZitHERR
At T January 2009, 31 December 2009 ond 1 R=FZhF-A—H"
January 2010 NE+ZA=T-H
kZE-ZE-3-8 - - 16,942 1615 - - 18,557
Provided for the year FREE - - 11153 60 - - 11213
At 31 December 2010 BW=Z2-BF+-A=t-H - - 28,095 1,675 - - 29770
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2010 R=2-ZF+-A=t+-H - 25 9,483 290 161 - 9959
At 31 December 2000 RZEENE+=A=1+-H 185,859 178 26,372 684 37 31,447 244 857
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

— Continued

Notes:

[a)

(b

[c)

(d)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straightline basis over the estimated useful lives less their
residual values at the following rates per annum:

Over the shorter of the term of the lease

or 3.33%

Medium-term
leasehold buildings
in the PRC
Lleasehold improvements ~ Over the shorter of the term of the lease
or 20%
Plant and machinery 10%-20%
Computer and office 20%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the directors of the
Company conducted a review of the Group's plant and equipment
and computer and office equipment and determined that a number of
those assets were fully impaired, due to the physical damage and
technical obsolescence. Accordingly, a total impairment loss of
approximately RMB11,213,000 has been recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2010.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group signed a
tenancy agreement with a third party to lease certain of its leasehold
buildings to the third party. Such leasehold buildings had been
reclassified as investment properties from the date of change in use
accordingly.

Cerfain of the property, plant and equipment has been pledged for
bank borrowings as at 31 December 2010 and 2009. Defails are
set out in Note 44.

ME - -BERRE - &

GEE

[a)

(b

(d]

ANNUAL REPORT 2010

Eit - BE Rk TO R fh A AT 6 A F A
W EEZREL LB HERT I FRFTE

RPBEPHNEE HBEBR3.33%
By (ABIEE /)

1R 78 #35k20%
(ABIEERAE)

B 5 B 25 10%&220%

BEREMAERE 20%

REMERKE

E 20%

BE_Z-—TF+-_A=+—-HLFE K2R
AEEHASENRERREETRT XL
EEHEZREEERERBERRINNBEM
HE2ERE Al BE-F-—FF+=
R=+—HALFECRIANBEBRE LD
/AR, 213,0007T °

BE-TTAFT-A=+—BFE £%H
B-EE=HETARGSE UARLET
BMENRTE=)  AWEERTEE UM
RECARENSRREME -

R-B-TER-FEAF ETNE B
BREESERARGRITEE  EERY
B 5t -
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B

Rl 755 ¥k % it 51

for the year ended 31 December 2010

BE=

20.

88

F-FES A=+ —ALFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

20. REWHE

RMB'O00
AR F T
COST R s
1 January 2009 R-ZETNAF—HA—H
Transfer from property, plant and equipment (Note 19) #E#% - lEREZHE (19 1,326
At 31 December 2009, 1 January 2010, R-ZEBEEAFE+=-A=+—-H -ZZE—%
31 December 2010 F—HA—BR=-ZE—ZFF+=A
=+—H 1,326
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT ZE&siFEREE
1 January 2009 R-ZEZENF—H—H —
Provided for the year FRNEE 1
At 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2010 R=ZBEARF+ZA=+—-HR
—_Z-ZH—H—H ]
Provided for the year FRERE 57
At 31 December 2010 R-—ZE—-ZHF+=-A=+-—H 58
CARRYING VALUES R B
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE-—ZFE+=-H=1+—H 1,268
At 31 December 2009 RZEZENF+=_A=+—H 1,325

CREMENR

Notes: B 5 -

[a) The above investment properties are depreciated on a straightline (a) LRAREBEMXDBREE R LR HKEFI4%
basis over the period of the shorter of the term of the lease or 4% (AREHREERE)FE:
per annum.

(b) All the above investment properties are situated in the PRC under (b) AEEMBEREVEABRBPHBOMRF
medium term leases to earn renfals or for capital appreciation CLARREA S K BEEARFE W AK K
purpose and are measured using the cost model. BXEE -

(c) The investment properties represent the buildings situated in the PRC. (c) BEWMEBEBCRPENETFT - ARTELER
Since the comparable market transactions are infrequent and the ZHERGAET % ANEEMAFENT
alternative reliable estimates of fair value are not available, the FEMEt MARREERA
directors of the Company consider that the fair value of the FEWRRHEEREAEETE
investment properties is not rehob\\/ determinable on a continuing
basis.

(d) All of the Group's investment properties have been pledged for bank (d) AEBEMAREMED LR

NINGBO YIDONG ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED

borrowings as at 31 December 2010 and 2009. Details are set out
in Note 44.
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21. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 21.

The Group's prepaid lease payments represent leasehold
land located in the PRC held under medium-erm leases.

BAAHEER

AEBZENBEERERETMBHM
FANTEREEL AR -

2010 2009
—E-Z2F —_ZETAF
RMB’'000 RMB'O00

AR®BTR AR® T

At T January m—A—H

Disposals HE

Amortisation provided for the year FAFHR A 8

At 31 December R+t-ZA=+—H

Analysed for reporting purpose as: REBRMETHOS
Current asset nRBEE
Non-current asset FERBEE

Included in prepaid lease payments as at 31 December
2010 was a carrying amount of approximately
RMB5,325,000 (2009: RMB5,563,000) representing
the leasehold land element of investment properties
measured using the cost model. Such leasehold land
was classified as a prepaid lease payments under an
less accumulated

(a)

operafing lease and carried at cost
amortisation.  Such prepaid lease payment was
amortised over the lease term on a sfraightline basis
from the date of change in use of the corresponding
buildings to investment properties during the year ended
31 December 2009.

(b  All of the Group's prepaid lease payments have been

pledged for bank borowings as at 31 December

2010 and 2009. Details are set out in Note 44.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fx o Wil 15 ¥ 7 b 5

for the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-F—FF+-A=1T—HALFE

22.

23.

Q0

INVENTORIES 22. &

2010 2009
—E-2F —FTTAF
RMB'000 RMB'O00
ARETR ARBTXT
Raw materials R ¥t 2,387 1,105
Work in progress R 237 162
Finished goods R T 3,703 1,407
6,327 2,674

TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. EREZERX
2010 2009

—E-FF “TITNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTFE ARET

Trade receivables B E 5 BRI 35,427 34,157
less: Accumulated impairment losses B RAFHREEIE (32,269) (32,357)
3,158 1,800

Impairment loss on frade receivables is recorded using an
allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery
of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss
is written off against trade receivables directly.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group's trade
receivables were individually determined to impaired. The
individually impaired receivables are recognised based on
the credit history of its customers, such as financial difficulties
or default in payments, and current market conditions.
Consequently, specific provision for impairment was
recognised. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

The directors of the Company consider that the fair values of
trade receivables are not materially different from their
carrying amounts because these amounts have short maturity
periods on their inception.

FEWE 5 RA 2 REEERBBREERC
B EAKREBEEREARDKFTETIRE
BRONFEREBRT - R E R 1R E & HEE K
B 5 R MH) -

REREHR AEE 2 @5 EKES
RREERRCELERE - ARHERE
BUEERDEREEFPZEERE MW
B 75 IR B Sk B R AT SRR 3R B WIS AROR
mFARERR - Bt - © 5 E R E R E &
B AKRBYERZFERAMTFEEM
A -

ARAEERR ARNEEREZHRRR
EREHBEEYR ZERBEZAFERR
FHEYEERER -
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for the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-F-—FF+-A=1—FALFE

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group allows an average credit period of 90 days to
its trade customers. The aged analysis of trade receivables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period, net of impairment losses recognised was as
follows:

23. RREZRM — &

AEBGRTHEESEPNTHEEYRR
Q0B - LTARBERRERAZIINE
WE 5K (EMNRE MR REEB)
B BR i 0 AT

2010 2009
—E-%F —TINF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARKTT

0 - 90 days 0%90R

Q1 - 180 days Q1&E180H

181 — 365 days 181&365H
Over 365 days H#iE365H

The movements in accumulated impairment losses of trade
receivables were as follows:

3,156 135

2 182

— (oY 4

— 806

3,158 1,800

RS SRR R R ERBENZFIT
2010 2009

—E-ZBF —TTNHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AREBTT

At 1 January n—A—H 32,357 30,974
Impairment loss recognised during the year F A HE R YR E B 18 482 2,571
Reversal during the year FR#EE (519) (1,182)
Written off during the year F AR (51) —
Exchange realignment HE 5, 38 B — [6)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 32,269 32,357

At 31 December 2010, included in the impairment loss are
individually impaired trade receivables in the Group with an
aggregate balance of approximately RMB32,269,000 (2009:
RMB32,357,000] which are long outstanding and have
been placed in severe financial difficulties and the
management assessed that the recovery of the amounts is
doubtful. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

R-ZZE-—TF+_-_A=+—H BREEBAE
BIEESR AT ARKES22600007T (=
ZEhF: AR¥32357000) 2 K& B
AEEEEERBEMBRBEFHCE
FIBENASERKESRNR BEE
FEEEMREARE - AEEY EZ
EHBpmaEMNEMMm -
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for the year ended 31 December 2010
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES — Continued 23.

The ageing analysis of frade receivables which were past
due but not impaired are as follows:

BHESRR - &

BEARBRENERESERNER DT
NN

2010 2009
—2-%F —TTAF
RMB’000 RMB'O00
ARBFR AREFT

Within Q0 days past due # B0 A
91 to 180 days past due # Bi91 £ 180H
Over 180 days past due BHIHEBI80H

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there was
no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a number of independent customers that have a
good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are sfill considered fully recoverable, The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Included in trade receivables are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency
of the entity to which they relate:

2 182
— 677
— 806
2 1,665

REHIRBE N B E 5 RN T HE
BRELENFZEPER -

ERMERBENEBRESRKXERS
RUHTHECLHENTZHBITLPAR - R
ERELR EEERRLXTEHRNE
EHXUESRANE EW&@ETE
gm - HBAEHEMRERBE - K
SEVELZSERTETHNERD -

FE W E 5 8RBT 53R (A 8 2 H R
MERBNNEEENIINEREE)

2010 2009

—E-FF —TENF

000 000

T T

uSh ESy - 188
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for the year ended 31 December 2010
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24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24 ENR - BRERHEMERKIEA
RECEIVABLES

2010 2009
—E-%F —2INF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTFE ARETT

Prepayments AR 68 172
Deposits g 35 2,058
Other receivables B pE Uk 58 122,796 51,262

122,899 53,492

less: Accumulated impairment losses B BAFHREEIE (51,636) (45,424)
71,263 8,068
The movements in accumulated impairment losses of other EMpElREN R RMEBEZESWNT

receivables were as follows:

2010 2009
—E-%%F —Z2INF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFTE ARETT

At 1 January Rn—A—H 45,424 38,794
Impairment loss recognised during the year FRERNREER 8,569 9,653
Reversal during the year FR#EE (2,357) (3,023)
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 51,636 45,424
At 31 December 2010, included in impairment losses are RZE—ZEF+A=1+—H " BESHE
individually impaired other receivables of the Group with an BIEEHRETHNAARES1,636,0007T (=
aggregate balance of approximately RMB51,636,000 (2009: TEENF: AREEA5424,000T) 7 K 8
RMB45,424,000) which are long outstanding and have AEEBEENBRENKREFINEE
been placed in severe financial difficulties and the ARENAEBRHMEKRZE  SBE
management assessed that the recovery of the amounts is FEBERBEBARE AEEYERZ
doubtful. The Group does not hold any collateral over these EHESBFAEAERRD -

balances.
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for the year ended 31 December 2010

BE=

F-FES A=+ —ALFEE

25. ASSETS /LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD

Q4

FOR SALE

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Company
entered info a sales and purchase agreement with an
independent third party, in relation to the possible disposal
of enfire issued share capital of AZEHmABREBRA
Al regarding business of research and production and
processing of electronic appliances and telecommunication
for RMB2,100,000. The share has been transferred to that
independent third party on 21 January 2011 accordingly.
The assets attributable from this company have been
classified as held for sale and are presented separately in
the consolidated statement of financial position accordingly.

The major classes of assets and liabilities classified as held
for sale at 31 December 2010, which have been presented

25. HESHENEE AE

RBE-FT-FTFT_A=+—HLFE"
$’Aﬂ§ﬁi 2B E=ZNRIL—NEEW

& ANRARARELERRSHNLE
RERARNZ D HITHRA

it
EANGIPA

EBRETHRARBANTREREER
mIT - FRKERARE21000007T -
BOEBHR-_T——F—A-_+—HH
ZAEEBZEE
ERESBAREREE  XNEAMHK

ETRBULE=T -

R KRPIBILYIR -

RIZE-—ZF+-A=+—B BERH
FHENTIZEERABHEMNERNRE

separately in the consolidated statement of financial position, EUBRRAKRBILES - FIEHWAT
are as follows:

2010
—ZE-FF
RMB'000
ARBFT
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERRE 370
Inventories FE 173
Trade receivables FEW B 5 IR 122
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TR e K& H it B RIA 387
Paid in advance B R IE 126
Cash and cash equivalents RehIReFMEIER 110
Total assets classified as held for sale SREARBIFHENBEE 1,288
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26.

27.

AMOUNT DUE TO A CORPORATE
SHAREHOLDER

The amount due to a corporate shareholder represents an
amount due to China Ruilion Holding Corporation (“China
Ruilian”) which is unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) DIRECTORS

Amounts due from [to] directors disclosed pursuant fo Section

26. BN —BEARRFIR

BN —2EARRRBERKEN T B K
HEEARAR(FERB)OZE -
BARELAEER T8 BAREX

e -

1

27 BEW(EMESE

RIBEBRRGHIZE1O1BIFIK R M U (f&

161B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as M EFERBEWT :
follows:
Maximum amount
outstanding
At 1.1.2010 At 31.12.2010 during the year
RZE-2F R-ZE-2F FAREE
-A-H +=ZA=t+-H WERE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT AEETT AEETT
Amounts due from directors: ERESHE:
Mr. Liv Xiao Chun ABBEH 144 17 144
Mr. Liv Feng HerLE 2,826 - 2,826
Mr. Wang Wei Shi TEEEE 10 - 10
Professor Fang Min HEET 31 - 5]
Mr. Pang Jun EELE 51 - 51
3,082 17 3,082
Amounts due to directors: ENESHE:
Mr. Gong Zheng Jun BEELLE 7800 6,000 /800
Professor Fang Min HEEL - 8 8
Mr. Pang Jun EERE - 8 8
Mr. liv Feng fEgxs - 153 478
7,800 6,169 8,204

The amounts due from [to) directors are unsecured, non-

interest bearing and repayable on demand.

FREMEEFRAELSELEN 28 H
BRERER -
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28. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) RELATED
COMPANIES

Q6

28.

W (BA)BEEQRRE

2010 2009
—g-8F —TThF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®BTT
Amounts due from related companies: FEU B E AR FRIA
ERIZRMERZEREELQT IERIERAEREBREE QA
("lZ, A ZE") (Note a) Tz A 2 ) (M 7 a) 16 —
Amounts due to related companies: JE A BB 38 N B R
RIERZ ZBBARKAR QA RYERZ BEBARRAR AT
("EFRZE’) (Note b) (MEZEz 2 (K 5EDb) 648 716
ARmBaREFMHBEREERA ARHBAREFMHAEREER
("Pa % im Bk") (Note o) &l ([P % 3m Bk ) (B 5 ) 15,000 11,300
RIERHBRBRAF RINVERBRBRAF
("RYIEZE") (Note d) (RYIZEZ=D) (Kt 52 d) 1,271 —
16,919 12,016

Notes:

[a)

(b

c)

NINGBO YIDONG ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED

The Company holds 40% equity interest of iz B | Z£ on behalf of Mr.
Li Xiao Kai, a supervisor of a Company's subsidiary. The amount due
from Uz A EEis unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand. The maximum amount outstanding during the year ended 31

December 2010 was RMB16,000.

Mr. Yang Li, a shareholder of the Company, is also a director and
shareholder of 2z 2 2. The amount due to %2 Z £is unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

P M ks a subsidiary of a corporate shareholder of the Company,
China Ruilian. The amount is unsecured, bearing interest at one year's
primary bank loan inferest rate per annum announced by the People’s
Bank of China and repayable on demand.

Mr. Gong Zheng Jun, a director of the Company, is also a
shareholder of &R JIE 2=, The Company holds 51% equity interest of
EINZEZE on behalf of Mr. Tan Zhan Yuan. The amount due to &I
2 is unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.
The maximum amount outstanding during the year ended 31

December 2010 was RMB1,271,000.

GEE

(al

(b

[c]

(d]

AL RAD M2
4 4l TR SA0% 80 IR © JE Il RV
REARER 28 DAMEREE - @
E-T-BET-ASt-BLEAEZHK
18 &S BB ARMI6,0007 -

ARBABRRGLEENRERZEEEHRK
R-BNERZENRAREER 28
BARBERMEE -

BARHBEDARE —BARKRRPE R Z
MEBRE - ZEREDREEALRPEA
RIBITRMEO—FRPERRITERFA LS
AREERIEE -

AARBEEEEELAENARIERNBRE -
ARRIRKEBELEERERIVERSILH
fRiE - BUCRIERMRBAEIEF - 28
BERERERE -BE-_T—TF+-_A=
T-BLEFEZAAEEGRSBEAARE
1,271,0007T °

ERERETROERAT
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29. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK 20. EERBITERRBITEER

BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry inferest at market rates ranged from
0.03% to 1.71% (2009: 0.03% to 1.71%| per annum. The
pledged bank deposits carry fixed inferest rate ranging from
1.71% to 3.60% (2009: 1.71% to 3.60%) per annum. The
pledged bank deposits will be released upon the settlement
of relevant bank borrowings and bills payables.

Pledged bank deposits represents deposits pledged to banks
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. At 3]
December 2009, deposits amounting fo approximately
RMB270,000 and RMB10,000,000 have been pledged to
secure bills payables and shortterm  bank borrowings
respectively and are therefore classified as current assets.

Included in the pledged bank deposits and bank balances
and cash are the following amounts denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate:

RITHEBRBFENENFOOIERITIEZ
F(ZZEZNF - N FO.03EEL7IEZME)
MMBHERFE - CERRITERERF
MENFIZIEZIOR ZE(ZEZAN
F:NF171EZEI.60E 2 FH)# & E F &=
AER-BEMARTERBREFERR
TEENENEERFERER -

BEEMBRTEREERTRITINER
NERAEBMERTEENER -1
“ETEAFTA=1T—R B#HEFRLY
A R#270,0007T K A R#10,000,0007T
EHER - D RERENEE & E IR
TTIRENER BRIERBDEE -

EERRTERARBRTERLEESE
BEIRBECAE ZAENERBN RS
BN EEE)

2010 2009

—E-ZEF —_ZTTNF

‘000 ‘000

T FIT

ushD ETT — 33
HKD BT 19 Q

There was approximately RMB235,000 are denominated in
RMB and deposited with banks in the PRC (2009:
RMB11,906,000). The RMB is not freely convertible info
other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and  Administration  of
Setflement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Company is permitted fo exchange RMB for
other currencies through authorised banks to conduct foreign
exchange business.

MW ANER 235000 A AR THE - 17
AFBEONRTCEZAF ARY
11906,0007T) - ARBTSERRLBR
Hiy & " - AW AR &S B RS &
EIRGROI N AEE EEMTEEERE
RAREEEBREETIIERHOR
THARBLBRSEMER -
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30. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 30. ENEZRARERRERE
2010 2009
—E-TF —_TTNF
RMB'000  RMB'0O00
ARBTRT ARBTT
Trade payables JEFT B 5 BR K 49,978 46,776
Bills payables N T & - 270
49978 47,046

The aged analysis of trade payables presented based on
the invoice date af the end of the reporting period was as

RBERRERERERAZINERE

SRR BRE DATH R AT -

follows:
2010 2009
—E-2F —_ZTTNF
RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT
0 - 90 days 0ZEQ0H 823 610
91 — 180 days Q1=180H 1,418 774
181 — 365 days 181&365H 3,448 1,129
Over 365 days HBi@365H 44,289 44,263
49978 46,776

Q8

The average credit period on purchases of goods is QO
days. The Group has financial risk management policies in
place to ensure that all payables are seftled within the credit
fimeframe.

Included in trade payables are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency
of the entity to which they relate:

BEAMNFHEEYROR - AEHE
BAEENBEARERERE  AERE
REERRANEBMARMNER -

2010 2009

—E-BF —TTNF

‘000 ‘000

Tt Fr

uSh E — 45

NINGBO YIDONG ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED
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30. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES — Continued

31.

32.

33.

Included in the bills payables with an aggregate carrying
amount of approximately RMB270,000 in respect of 31
December 2009 were secured by the pledged bank
deposits of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Company
utilised its  bills faciliies and issued certain  bills to its
subsidiaries or third parties. The subsidiaries of the Company
passed the bills to other third parties and the third parties
discounted the bills and banked in the amount into the bank
accounts of the Group. The total value of bills issued
amounting fo approximately RMB60,850,000. The bank
acceptance draffs issued in this respect were recorded
through the current amount of subsidiaries and other
payables to the third parties. In consequence, the Group
bear the discounted bill interest which as advances fo the
third parties for discounting the bills.

AMOUNT DUE TO A MINORITY
SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY

The amount due fo a minority shareholder of a subsidiary is
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

DIVIDENDS PAYABLES

The dividends payables represent the final dividend declared
for Promoter Shares in 2004 and shareholders of the
Company in 2005 which amounting to RMB940,000 and
RMB3,500,000 was respectively.

30. BNESRARRERE — &

31.

32.

FAZEZEAFTAZ=+-BREES
SR/ ARE270000T ) EREE - T)
MAEBENDEMRITERTAER -

BE_TTEAFT_A=+—HLHFE"
ARREHHREREEE  YAEMEBEAR
AXF=ZNETETRE ARANE
RABEBEETEME=T7 ME=7
BEBERYEZFEAFALREER
THRPH - BETRBEALEEBEORAR
#%60,850,0007T ° B Ut 1M 8 17 &Y 4R 17 A&
AEZCFAMBRARNEERSTRE
fENE=ZT7RE - At - MAFEN
MEBRAEEAE EARLMBEZEM
[FF =T F A B -

BN—BHRBRAAN—BIH
IR R IE

e —HEMBARN— 2D BREKEA
TEEH  RERBARERER -

BARE

ENRERIL T TOFNERAR
ME_ZEEAFHNARTARERETIRN R
HEE 275l AARKE40,000T AR
#3,500,0007T °

PROVISION FOR CLAIMS 33. RERE
2010 2009
—E-BE _TTNF
RMB'000  RMB'O00
ARBTRT AR®TT
At 1 January R—HA—H 36,899 20,515
Additional and reversal provision during the year — 4F A58 71 % 5 [0 £ 4,192 2,680
Setflement during the year FRAEE (34,573) 6,102)
Reclassified from trade payables EIRNEREFH DA - 3,294
Reclassified from other payables Hit R BRREHR R - 16,512
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 6,518 36,899

ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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33. PROVISION FOR CLAIMS — Continued

@) As af 31 December 2009, provision for
included an amount of approximately RMB1,806,000
in respect of a claim against the Group by Zhejiang

Metals  And  Materials Group Co., lid.
Metals”).

Zhejiang Metals applied to China International
Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission Shanghai
Commission (FBIBBREEZESEZESLEN S
arbitration on 22 October 2008 for default payment
for goods. Zhejiang Metals requesting Zhezhang
Tianchuang Communication Company Limited [ 3II X
Bl {E MR A a] )("Zhezhang Tianchuang’) to pay the
payment for goods of RMB4,672,000 and the interest
of RMB553,000. The Company was required to be
listed as the second respondent and to assume the
joint liability. On 22 October 2008, the arbitration
commission issued the arbitral award which judged
that Zhezhang Tianchuang shall pay the payment for
goods of RMB4,672,000 and the interest
RMB541,000 and the Company as the second
respondent shall assume the joint liability. The

Company made an appeal to Shanghai

Intermediate People’'s Court against the judgement.

On 18 February 2009, a judgement was made by
the relevant court on the litigafion in favour of Zhejiang
Metals. The Company entered info an agreement with
Zhezhang Tianchuang agreed that the aggregate
principal and inferests in the amount of approximately
RMB2,606,000 would be paid by the Company by
monthly repayment of RMB100,000, among which
RMB80O0,000 has been paid by the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2009. During 2010,
RMB600,000 was further setfled and the remaining
balance of approximately RMB1,206,000 had been
recorded in the consolidated financial position as

liabilities as at 31 December 2010.

100 NINGBO YIDONG ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED

33. RERE - =&

(al

R-ZFZFAFF+-A=+—H" ¥
EBEREEENIVESEEBEAR
AAHIZBDHEAEBRNR
B ARE1,806,0007T -

FIEBREXETMR_ZEZN
FHAZ+TZARPEBEREER
SEEELENSRBME - MT
SBERFYREBEARAR (R
KA DI HERAREAL672,000
T & F B A R #553,0005T © AR
B ERIABE WL REES
B - PR EZEBEER_ZZTNF+
AZ+-HTEMFHEBTE %W
EEHTE: FIRBEZHNERA
R 84,672,000 &k # B8 A R #
5410007t + % W ERR R AEE
EHEET - ARBISHEZAR TR L
R ZFRRAREBTIEE E5F -

RZZEZAF_A+N\B - BEE
etz R R H T2 BB K - AL
AR KBRS H & €T RE
ARARERBMBABEARE
100,000ty 5 A EEA S R F B
HEHARME2,606,0007T » HF AR
RARBE_ZTTANF A=+
—ALFEARAEXNARE
800,000t - RZE—FF B 5
HNEE 1 A R #600,0007T » T &R 3K
BN R 206,000 EER T —
TFE+_A=+—HNEEHBENK
MRANGIEEE -
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33. PROVISION FOR CLAIMS — Continued

(b)

(c)

As at 31 December 2010, provision for claims
included an amount of approximately RMB1,012,000
[2009: RMB1,012,000) in respect of a c|0|m against
the Group by Shenzhen Haishi Communication Co.,
Ltd.("Shenzhen Haishi”)

Shenzhen Haishi took a legal action with the People's
Court of Shibei District in Qingdao City against the
Company for compensafion for loss on invenfory,
fransportation and maintenance and loss of goodwill
for an aggregate amount of approximately
RMB1,990,000. A judgement was made by the
People's Court of Shibei District in Qingdao City on 3
April 2008 required the Company fo compensate an
aggregate amount of approximately RMB1,012,000 to
Shenzhen Haishi for the said losses. The Company
made an appeal fo the Intermediate People’s Court of
Qingdao City on 28 April 2008. On 20 October
2008, a judgement was made by the relevant court
on the litigation in favour of Shenzhen Haishi.
Accordingly, an amount of RMB1,012,000 had been
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the vyear ended 3]
December 2008 and included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as liabilities as at 31
December 2008, 2009 and 2010. During the vear,
no sefflement has been made.

The Group was sued by a contractor for default
payment of approximately RMB3,446,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2008 in relation to
construction work carried out by the confractor. The
Group and the confractor entered into a  setflement
agreement pursuant fo which the confractor agreed to
accept RMB3,446,000 as full and final settlement of
the claims. Approximately RMB3,446,000 have been
reclassified from other payables to provision for claims
as at 31 December 2009. During the year ended 31
December 2008, the Group has seftled approximately
RMB1,150,000. The remaining balance of
approximately RMB2,296,000 was included in
provision for claims as at 31 December 2009. During
2010, the Contractor was agreed to accept
approximately of RMB2,100,000 as full and final
setilement of the claims and the remaining balance of
claims was waived.
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(d)

(e)

NINGBO YIDONG ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED

The Group was sued by a contractor for default
payment of approximately RMB1,400,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2009 in relation to
construction work carried out by the confractor. On 6
September 2009, both parties reached a mediation
agreement in the court pursuant to which the contractor
agreed to accept RMBI1,400,000 as full and final
sefflement of the claims of which approximately
RMB1,120,000 payable by the Group on or before
31 January 2010 and the remaining balances payable

by the Group on or before 31 June 2010.
Accordingly, an amount of approximately
RMB1,400,000 has been reclassified from other

payables and recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position as liabilities as at 31 December
2009. During 2010, the Confractor was agreed fo
accept approximately of RMB1,321,000.00 as full and
final sefllement of the claims and the
balance of claims was waived.

remaining

The Group was sued by a contractor for default
payment of approximately RMB781,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2009 in relation to
consfruction work carried out by the contractor. On 6
September 2009, both parties reached a mediation
agreement in the court pursuant to which the contractor
agreed to accept RMB881,000 as full and findl
sefflement of the claims of which approximately
RMB100,000 has been paid by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2009. Accordingly, an
amount of RMB180,000 have been recognized in the
consolidated  statement of comprehensive income for
the year ended 31 December 2009 as provision for
claims and an amount of approximately RMB601,000
previously recognized as other payables has been
reclassified to provision for claims during the year
ended 31 December 2009. During 2010, the Group
was made a setflement approximately RMB248,000
and the remaining balance of the claim is
approximately RMB533,000.
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33. PROVISION FOR CLAIMS — Continued

()l As af 31 December 2009, provision

included an amount of approximately RMB7,191,000
in respect of a claim against the Group by a bank for
default payment of bank borrowings by a third party
of which the Group is a guarantor of the bank
borrowings. Having considered legal advice,
amount of approximately RMB7,191,000 had been
recognised in the consolidated statement
comprehensive income for the vyear ended 3]
December 2008 and the consolidated statement of

financial position as liabilities as at 31

2008. A judgement has been made by the court on
30 January 2009 in favour of the bank and no
setflement has been made by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2009. During 2010, due to
the cut off day of interest of borowing is different
between written judgement (20 April 2008) and the
mediation agreement (20 August 2010),
approximately RMB1,661,000 was added into the
remaining balance and total as RMB8,853,000. The
group was made a payment fo setfle the remaining

balance during 2010.

(g As at 31 December 2009, included in provision for
claims an amount of approximately RMB4,308,000 in
respect of a claim against the Group by ANC
Holdings Company Llimited ["ANC"). ANC took a
legal action with Ningbo Intermediate People’'s Court
on 30 March 2006 against the Group for default
payments of goods and interests for an aggregate
amount of USD631,000 (equivalent to approximately

RMB4,308,000).
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33. PROVISION FOR CLAIMS — Continued
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()

NINGBO YIDONG ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED

— Continued

A judgement was made by the Ningbo Intermediate
People's Court on 14 July 2008 required the Group to
pay for the goods and inferests for an aggregate
amount of USD631,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB4,308,000). The Company made an appeal to
the Higher People’s Court of Zhejiang Province on 30
July 2008. Having considered legal advice, the
directors are of the opinion that the Group has a
meritorious defense against such claims. Accordingly,
the directors do not believe that these claims will have
any material adverse impact on the Group and,
therefore no provisions have been made in respect
thereof in the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2008. However, on 23
February 2009, a judgement was made by the
relevant court on the litigafion in favour of ANC.
Accordingly, an amount of RMB1,014,000 had been
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the vyear ended 3]
December 2009 as provision for claims and an
amount of approximately RMB3,294,000 previously
recognised as account payable has been transferred
to provision for claims during the vyear ended 31
December 2009.

On 5 February 2010, the Group enfered into a
setflement agreement with  ANC  pursuant to  which
ANC agreed to accept approximately of
RMB2,134,000 as full and final setflement of the
claims and the remaining balance of the claims was
waived.
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33. PROVISION FOR CLAIMS — Continued

(h)

(i

As at 31 December 2009, included in provision for
claims an aggregate amount of approximately
RMBZ07,000 in respect of a number of claims against
the Group by the Group's suppliers in respect of
default payments for goods. Accordingly, an amount of
approximately RMB2,594,000 and RMB142,000
previously recognized in accounts payables and other
payables respectively have been transferred to
provision for claims as af 31 December 2008.
Agreements have been reached between the Group
and these suppliers for the setflement of the claims,
pursuant fo which the Group agreed fo seffle an
aggregate amount of approximately RMB2,736,000,
of which approximately RMB1,897,000 had been
setfled by the Group during the years ended 31
December 2009, the remaining balance of claims
amounted to approximately RMB132,000 has been
waived by the suppliers and recognised as other
income as reversal of provision for claims in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year ended 31 December 2009. During 2010, the
Group was made a setflement of claims approximately
RMB107,000 and the remaining balance s
approximately RMB600,000 as at 31 December
2010.

As at 31 December 2009, included in provision for
claims is an amount of approximately RMB2,145,000
in respect of a claim made on 7 December 2007
against the Group for default payment of a loan from
a thid party together with inferest in an aggregate
amount of approximately RMB5,500,000. A judgement
has been made by the People’s Court of Zhenjiang
Province on 18 January 2008, pursuant to which the
GCroup is required to repay the loan together with
interest amounted to approximately RMB5,500,000.
The Group has settled RMB3,000,000 and
RMB355,000 during the years ended 31 December
2008 and 2009 respectively. An amount of
approximately  RMB2,500,000 previously recognized
as other payables has been transferred to provision for
claims during the year ended 31 December 2008.
The Group has seftled RMB200,000 subsequent to 31
December 2009. During 2010, the Group was made
a further settlement of claims approximately
RMB700,000 and the remaining balance of the claim

was waived according to the mediation agreement.
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33. PROVISION FOR CLAIMS — Continued
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(i

(k]

NINGBO YIDONG ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED

As at 31 December 2009, included in provision for
claims is an amount of approximately RMB742,000 in
respect of a claim against the Group on 16
November 2007 by a third party for default payment
for purchase of office equipments together with inferest
on oufstanding amount due. A judgement has been
made by the People’s Court of Zhenjiang Province on
17 March 2008 required the Group fo setile the
outstanding balances within 3 months. Accordingly, an
amount of RMB742,000 had been recognized in the
consolidated  stafement of comprehensive income for
the year ended 31 December 2008 as provision for
claims. No seftlement has been made by the Group
during the three years ended 31 December 2008,
2009 and 2010.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, a
mediation agreement ["“Mediation Agreement’] has
been made in the Court by the Group and a supplier
on 8 November 2007 in respect of a seftlement of a
claim made by the supplier on 20 April 2006 against
the Group for default payments for purchase of goods
fogether with interest accrued of an aggregate amount
of approximately USD3,759,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB  25,753,000). Pursuant to the
Mediation Agreement, the supplier accepted
USD1,020,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB6,988,000) as full and final settlement of the
claim and the remaining balance of the claims be
waived provided that the Group repay the amount by
end of April 2008. However, the Group failed to
setfle the amount by end of April 2008. Subsequent
to 30 April 2008, both parties agreed that an amount
of RMB2,000,000 be paid by the Group as findl
setflement of the claims and the remaining balance be
waived. The Group seffled an aggregate amount of
approximately RMB556,000 during the year ended 31
December 2008. The outstanding balance of
approximately RMB2,888,000 which previously
recognized in other payables has been included in
the consolidated statement of financial position as
liabilities as at 31 December 2008.
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33. PROVISION FOR CLAIMS — Continued

(k]

(m]

— Continued

On 5 November 2009, both parties reached another
mediation agreement in the Court pursuant to which
the supplier accept RMB1,900,000 as full and findl
seftlement of the claim. The Group settled
RMB1,900,000 for the year ended 31 December
2009 and the remaining balance of approximately
RMB®88,000 have been waived and recognised as
other income in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income for the vyear ended 31
December 2009.

On 8 April 2009, the Company received a writ of
summons from a supplier in respect of a civil claim
against the Company for default payment on goods
and sub-constructing fee with total amount of
approximately RMB101,000. On 24 February 2010,
the People Court's of Zhejiang Province judged in
favour of the supplier which required the Company to
setfle the said amount of approximately RMB101,000
with interest to the supplier. An amount of
approximately RMB101,000 previously recognized as
other payables has been transferred to provision for
claims during the year ended 31 December 2009.
No sefflement has been made during 2010 and the
remaining balance of the claim is approximately
RMB116,000.

On 11 December 2009, the Company received a writ
of summons in the PRC from a contractor for default
payment of approximately RMB19,178,000 for
construction work carried out by the contractor. On 8
February 2010, both parties reached a mediation
agreement in the Court, pursuant to which the
Company agreed to pay RMB3,000,000 on or before
8 February 2010, RMB5,500,000 on or before 30
March 2010 and approximately RMB5,910,000 on or
before 30 April 2010 for setflement of the claims. An
amount of approximately RMB14,410,000 previously
recognised as other payables has been transferred to
provision for claims during the year ended December
2009. During 2010, the all balances of the claim was
settled.

33. RERE - =&

(k]

()

ANNUAL REPORT 2010

-
— &

—EEAF+-AER &7 H
EELERZ—BHABRS B
HEBZEX ARKIL900,000T %

1,5’31%%*2“*%@ REBR
Eiz?: EENF+-_A=1T—BIL
iE,u%/\E% 200,0007T - T &k
/TAZ’]}\E%%SOOOmEﬁ%%%
YREBEE-_TTAF+_A=1—

B 1EF 2 H) 4R /.:.\’1\@14& £ 3} R R
REAMYA -

RZZEZNFEANR ARAEE
B2 EREARRABRER
ENERSHK AEEHEEAEYD
ko BEAHXHARKIO 000 °
R-F-—FFE_A-+WA - HT
BARZEREEHR J‘E'Fﬁﬁ%éﬁ I 2
KARRARRAHERBELRSELD
AE%]O],QOOEL%UE\O 5 Al FE
RBHEMRENLHAREKEI01,000
EEEA@i477H¢+ ﬂ -1—
—HLEFEELSRERME -
—TFEAEFELEN RE
2/ ANEEE116,0007T ©

E’Uﬁ%%ﬁ

RZZFZFAF+-_A+—RB AR
ARPEZEE-ZAEZENERS
R AR BBEEAZEERETHD

o|

BEETRERIEBEBLHARKI78000
e RZB—FF ﬂ)\El”ﬁH
POEBTER MR Z - B AR A
RER-_ZT—ZFF-_AN\NAKZAH

AR®3,000000T - RZT—FF
ZA=ZTHRIZAXNTARSE
5500000t kM —F—FF WA
STHHZAXNHDARE
5910,0007C - REENZERE - 5%
Al fE R A H MR IE'E’JZ’J/\EM
MAOOOOTEEB(\@Z —ZETAF
—i—iﬁJtifﬁii}i}%%%f%ﬂ%"%:
T-TF RECZHEM-

—Z-TFER 107



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fx o Wil 15 ¥ 7 b 5

for the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-F—FF+-A=1T—HALFE

33.

34.

108

PROVISION FOR CLAIMS — Continued

()  The Group was sued by a Contractor for default
payment of approximately RMB2,824,000.00 at 18
January 2010. The Court decision is in favor the
Constructor and requests the Group to pay for the
remaining balance after the deduction of a payment
approximately RMB100,000. The remaining balance is
approximately RMB 2,724,000. On 17 August 2010,
a payment approximately RMB400,000 was made by
the Group according to the Court request.

Accordingly, an amount of RMB2,324,000 had been
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the vyear ended 31
December 2010 and included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as liabilities as at 31
December 2010.

BANK BORROWINGS

33. RERE - =&

N R-E-—FF-—A+N\A A&H
W BARRRSHRERDOAR
%2,824,0007T ° A B H R AR
B WERAEBNMBRAR
#100,0007T 89 1 K 1& &) 81 58 < £4
BARANRYE2,7240007T c R=ZF
—ZFNATER AEBEREE
Be 2 5k 32 89 A R #400,0007T °

At - RBE-_ZF-—FF+_-_A=
T—RLEFE ER&GEa2EKE
* R AR 23240007 © I 44
AZE-—ZEE+-_A=1+—HHE
EMBARRE -

34. RITIEE

2010 2009
S
RMB'000  RMB'000

ARBTRT ARETT

Secured bank borrowings

At 31 December 2010, the Company had two bank
borrowings totaling approximately RMB84,259,000 in which
their maturity dates had been expired without seftlement. Up
to the date of this report, the Company had seftled of the
bank borrowings approximately RMB65,989,000 and  sfill
had tofaling approximately RMB18,270,000 defaulted bank
borrowings not vyet seftled. The Company had obtained a
consent lefter from one of the bank with defaulted
borrowings of approximately RMB14,750,000 for not taking
any legal actions towards the Company for claiming the
defaulted balances and any related penalties and costs up
to the date 30 April 2011. The directors of the Company is
under negotfiation with the bankers for the rearrangement of
the captioned defaulted bank borrowings and considered
that the confingent liabilities arising from the consequences
of default of bank borrowings are immaterial.

NINGBO YIDONG ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED

EEMRITEE
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34. BANK BORROWINGS — Continued

Bank borrowings bear interest at fixed rates ranging from
5.35% to 5.84% (2009: 5.35% to 5.84%) per annum.

Bank borrowings with aggregate principal amount  of
RMB84,259,000 (2009: RMBI129,199,000] were secured
by property, plant and equipment, investment properties,
prepaid lease payments and pledged bank deposits with
carrying amounts approximately of RMB9,421,000,
RMB1,268,000, RMB5,325,000 and Nil respectively as af
31 December 2010 (2009: RMB174,836,000;
RMB1,325,000; RMB11,956,000 and RMBI10,000,000).
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35. DEFERRED REVENUE IE 3 U £
2010 2009
—E-2F —ZZTThF
RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBETFT ARETTT
1 January w—H—H 6,000 128
Transfer to consolidated statement of EREREEENER
comprehensive income (6,000) (128)
Government grant received BT B - 6,000
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H — 6,000
Analysed for reporting purpose as: REWRMET DN
Current liabilities mEAE — 6,000
Notes: B aE
(a) During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group received an (a) HEZZTENF+A=+—HLEFER &

amount of RMB6,000,000 from Government as compensation for
relocation of factories. As certain condition has fulfilled during the
year ended 31 December 2010, such amount is recognised as
other income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. B
Number of shares Amount
B A -t
‘000 RMB'000
T AREFT
Issued and fully paid: BRITEER:
At 1 January 2009, 31 December 2009 RZEENF—HA—H-
and 31 December 2010 ZEENFF+A
—t+—HEZZE—ZF
+=-—A=+—H 500,000 50,000
Domestic share (Note a NE R (M 5Ea) 370,000 37000
H-shares (Note b) HA% (FF 5= b) 130,000 13,000
500,000 50,000
Notes: B 5 -

(a) Pursuant to an approval dated 4 June 2003 issued by the China
Securities Regulatory Commission, all the shares of the Company,
which were issued and fully paid, being 37,000,000 ordinary shares
with a par value of RMBI.OO each, were sub-divided into
370,000,000 ordinary shares with a par value of RMBO.10 each.

(b) On 14 November 2003, the Company commenced the frading of
the newly issued 130,000,000 H-shares of RMBO.10 each on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange, including 117,000,000 H-shares to
institutional investors by way of placement and 13,000,000 H-shares
for subscription by members of the public in Hong Kong under the
Public Offer at the Offer Price of HKDO.50 (equivalent to
approximately RMB69,550,000). Following the issue, the share
capital and capital reserve of the Company increased by
approximately HKD12,150,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB13,000,000) and HKD52,850,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMBS56,550,000) respectively.

(a

(b

BEREZEFEEERZEEN _ZET=F
NAOBEMBOR ERTRARNME
ARA B  BEREERSAREIOOTH
37,000,0008% & i@ B 48 A B REE A A
R #0.107T#9370,000,000 % % i ik ©

RZZBZT=F+—F+WH  KAF AR
R Tl ¥R B B ¥ ¥ 17 #130,000,000 8%
ARBEOIOLHHE  BREREBEAFEE
NBEEBOSOB THEBARKNERE 8
B A 513,000,000 HAG M) # i IR & & Fl &
117000,000 H BR(HH & N #H A R &
69,550,0007) ° 1D BT » ARFBRA R
B D BE K 12,150,000/ 7T (HBE R
# A R #13,000,0007T) F52,850,0005% 7T
(FHE RO ARMS56,550,0007T) °
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37. DEFERRED TAXATION

38.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused
tax losses of approximately RMB190,537,000 (2009:
RMB96,929,000] available to offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.  Pursuant to  the
relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the unused tax
losses incurred by the Company and PRC subsidiaries can
be carried forward for a period of five years. Other tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of approximately RMB31,209,000
(2009: RMB39,415,000). No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences
can be utilized.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@)  Pursuant tfo an agreement and supplementary
agreement dated 20 December 2006 and 17 August
2007 respectively, in connection with the Group's very
substantial disposal transaction regarding the disposal
of the Group’s land use right together with buildings
thereon (collectively referred to the “Property”) at a
consideration of RMB8,000,000, the Group is required
to deliver the Property to Property land Resources
Bureau of Yuyao City before October 2007 As the
Group failed to deliver the Property before October
2007, Property land Resources Bureau of Yuyao City
claimed the Group for compensation for breach of
contract at amount calculated based on a daily rate
of 0.05% of the valuation amount of the Property [the
"Penalty”).

37.

38.
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38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES — Continved

112

te]

(b)

NINGBO YIDONG ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED

— Continued

The Group obtained a reply letter dated 16 March
2010 from Property land Resources Bureau of Yuyao
City, pursuant to which the Penalty will be waived
provided that the Group moved out from the Property
and transfer the Property to that independent third
party on or before 30 April 2010 (as further extended
from 30 August 2009 according to another reply letter
dated 11 March 2009 issued by Property land
Resources Bureau of Yuyao City). Having considered
legal advice, the directors of the Company believe
that they will fulfill the said condition before 30 April
2010 and accordingly, no provision for the Penalty
has to be provided for the year ended 31 December
2010. The Penalty amounted to approximately
RMBQ,760,000 and RMB18,142,000 as at 3]
December 2008 and 2009 respectively.

The directors and of the opinion that the Group , had
fulfilled the said condition and no penalty will be
charged.

On 30 December 2009, the Company had been
served with a writ of summons in the PRC from a
creditor for the default payment of loan of
approximately RMB3,869,000. A hearing was held on
10 March 2010 and the legal proceedings are sfill in
progress up fo the dafe of this report and no
conclusion has been reached by the Court up to the
date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements. Based on the legal advice and the facts or
evidences presented to the Court during the first court
hearing, the directors are of the opinion that the
Croup would have strong grounds to defend and
accordingly, no provision is required fo be made in
the consolidated financial statements.

38. AEE - &

(al

(b)

-
— &

REHERERUTELIERBR
—E-FF= A+ NHELNRIEK -
WAEBR-_T—Z=FMNA=+H
ZHBREBES—MHHBERKTHLZER
BR-ZEZENFE=A+—B%HHnE
B BTN FNAZtHRE#E
—FER)BHEZDERBZ Y ESE
FZBAUE=F QTS ERE -
KREFEERE ARBEER
BEEBR-_ZE—ZTFNA=+HZ
MEITZERE BREE_%—
TFE+-A=+—BHIEEETRX
SERE R T N\ER-ZE
NEF_A=+—H8 Si&nn8A
A R 9760000t B A R ¥
18,142,0007T °

EERRAKEC R ERATRRMT
RBASNEMSE -

R-ZFTZANF+-A=1H " AR7
EREBEARBOINERGH
A R#3,860000tw) B EM<S
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T ZRERFREEAREAHD
EET MEBEEREZSTRAVB
HWRAY AARAGHER - REZX
REARR —FBRATREINEFEE
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39. OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessor

Rental income earned during the year was approximately
RMB216,000 (2009: Nil] The investment properties are
expected to generate rental yields of 11% on an ongoing
basis. The investment properties held have committed tenants
for the next one to three years [2009: one to three years).

At the end of reporting period, the Group had contacted
with tenants for the following minimum lease payments:

39. LERAD
AEEEREEA

FANESBRADSARK2160007T
(ZZETNE B FERKLEREMEMR
SWEERNRNG% - BEREMENEP
AHEEAR—ZE=ZF(CTTENF: —F
=F)EERE -

R R - AR ER TR RS RE
FiT#

2010 2009

—E-FF —_TThF

RMB’000  RMB'000

ARBTRT AR¥BTT

Within one year —FRX 250 221
In the second fto fifth year inclusive E_ZFELF(BREEMF) 292 542
542 763

The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases in
respect of office premises during the year amounfing fo

RMB928,000 (2009: RMB730,000).

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office premises. leases are
negotiated for a ferm of five years and rentals are fixed.
None of the leases included contingent rentals and terms of
renewal were established in the leases.

At the end of reporfing period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

REBEEREAA

FARBRAEVELZHAVENNR
EHEE/ARE28000TT (ZETNEF:
AR #730,0007T) -

REMVESEASEREETHAE
MERNHES -BHONBEEHRRE
FoHSEE TEXAREEPHNHELY
NBHFRITLRELF -

R¥REHR - AEBRIZENAT BHRH
AT MEEEHORBREEHESE

operafing leases which fall due as follows: H ARCHE
2010 2009
—E-2F ZZTThF
RMB’000  RMB'000
AR¥ET R ARETT
Within one year —FR 1,391 121
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZELF(BRERMF) 4,639 121
6,030 242
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

114

(a)

(b)

(d)

NINGBO YIDONG ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED

40. BEALEXRS

The balances with related parties at the end of () RIMEMAR HEEALIHNEHRE
reporting period are disclosed elsewhere in the BRGEVBHRIROEMIBOF -
consolidated financial statements.
The key management personnel of the Group b) AEEETEZEBEABBREARQG AN
comprises all directors of the Company, details of their FEF HBMeFBHRENW T
emoluments are disclosed in Note 16. The 16 RRRIEEHFHBFMEES
remuneration of the directors of the Company is FEARSE LTSGR MEE -
determined by the remuneration commitiee having
regards to the performance of individuals and market.
The Group had the following material transactions with ) AEEEHEBAEATNRFABAT
its related company during the year: BARXRS:
2010 2009
—E-FF —TThF
RMB’000  RMB'000
AR®TRT AR¥ETT
ERZE ERZE
Sales of goods HE S m - 1
Rental expenses paid XN HEEER - 48
Technical services income received W BR Y 1 1 Bl 75 A 21 1,960
Guarantee (d) #E&R
At 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, NR-E—FF+-_HA=+—BHEK—

guarantees given by China Ruilian, the corporate
shareholder of the Company for the bank borrowings
of the Group were RMB84,259,000 and
RMB129,199,000 respectively.

ZTZNF+_A=+—H ARQF
EABRRFT BB RITE S RHE
B R D Rl B A R#84,250,0007T
& AR®129,199,0007T °

BRERETRHERAT
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 41. ZRF BRI REHR
INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

2010 2009
—E-2F —TThF
RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETTT

Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB REE 9903 231,542
Investment properties BREME 1,268 1,325
Prepaid lease payments IEEREiEN=-F 5,083 11,714
Interests in subsidiaries AP NGIEE o) 1,590 3918
17,844 248,499
Current assets RBEE
Inventories T8 4,097 1,168
Trade receivables BUE SRR 3,121 1,669
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BNFIE - Be R EAEKIRR 70,750 6,158
Paid in advances B R IA 3,584 4,811
Prepaid lease payments BNEER 242 242
Amounts due from directors FEUE = FR - 2,709
Amounts due from related companies JiE U5 8 338 " B ROR 16 -
Pledged bank deposits BEHEMBITHERK - 270
Bank balances and cash RITEHR LA 166 1,066

81,976 18,093

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 —ZE—ZEER| s
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 41, KRN BERRARER — &
INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY
— Continued
2010 2009

—B-BE —TINF
RMB'000  RMB'O00
ARBTFRE ARMTT

Current liabilities FBEE
Trade and bills payables N ESRREERE 48,862 45,681
Other payables and accruals Hih B ERR K EGE R 47,532 56,485
Receipt in advances e W R IE 5,598 7,321
Amount due to a corporate shareholder FERt—Z 5 AR R IE 195,069 188,089
Amount due a minority shareholder of JER —REM B AR —BDH
a subsidiary % R R IR - —
Amounts due to directors FERES A 6,169 7,800
Amounts due to related companies BB EARIFRIA 16,919 716
Dividends payables FEA IR B 4,440 4,440
Provision for claims REEE 6,518 36,899
Bank borrowings RITEE 84,259 129,199
Deferred revenue iR I W = — 6,000
415,366 483,530
Net current liabilities REBEEFEHE (333,390)  (465,437)
Net liabilities FAE (315,546)  (216,938)
Capital and reserves EXRR#E
Share capital % A< 50,000 50,000
Reserves & (365,546) (266,938)
Capital deficiency BARE 4 (315,546) (216,938

1o NINGBO YIDONG ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED BERIEREFROERDA



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fx o Wil 15 ¥k 7 b 5

for the year ended 31 December 2010

R —F—FF+-—A=1+—HIFE

42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

42. B AFHE

Place of
incorporation/  Nominal value of
registration and  paid up issued/
Class of operation/ registered/ordinary Attributable equity interest
Name of subsidiary shares held  establishment capital held by the Company Principal activities
B
g3 AMREE/ BHRERT/
MEARER RIDER JpAvei ko Bift/ EERTEE RAREMGRE TEEK
Directly Indirectly
E# i
Aech Technology [HK]  Ordinary Hong Kong HKD2 100% —  Sale of confroller systems for
Limited mobile phones
IzRR(EE) TR BE 2B 100% - NYEEZHRERHEE
BRAA
Ningbo Yitai Electronic ~ Coniributed ~ PRC RMB15,000,000 51% —  Research and development and
Company Limited capital production of controller systems
for display devices
ERREF BRHRA HE AE#15,000,0007T 51% - BrRETHRESHREE
BRAT REREE
Ningbo Yidong Digital ~ Coniributed ~ PRC RMB5,000,000 (paid up 99% —  Research and development of external
Technology Co. lid. capital RMBT,500,000) equipments of electronic
calculators, electronic
components, imegrofed circuits,
household electrical appliances,
telecommunication and terminal
equipments
ERIz REIERIR BHRAK HE AR#5,000,0007t (4 99% — BT ERINIRE  BETEAMH
BRAF RARH1,500,000 ERER  FAEE
7T) BERE R m BT E
AREELERE Contributed ~ PRC RMB3,000,000 (paid up 100% —  Research and production and
ER2RF] (Note a) capital RMB2,100,000) processing of electronic
appliances and
felecommunication
AL EHE BRI BARAK HE ARH3,000,000(%12 100% - RERRBBHBENHE
BRAF (ko] AE%2,100,000 RELEMT
T)
Note B 52
a) The name of the company was changed from A% IE Y EREHEH [a) NG T ERR-_ZE-—ZEFLA=THHEAL
RAR to AREHEXBERIEARAR on 30 July 2010, which ERARMBERARINAALEHENE
passed by Xian Administration Bureau for Indusiry and Commence. ﬂ E{ﬁ RAA] EEALZIFMITRERBI
The company was classified as assets held for sales as at 31 HoRZE—ZTF+-A=+—H ZAAE

December 2010. (see Note 25 for the details)
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42.

43.

118

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES — Confinved 42. WEATHE _ &
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding RERIFRNERMEHE - HEMB QA
as at the end of the year or at any time during the year. BEMEREENEBTES -
DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 43. HEWEB A E
On 25 August 2010, the Group disposed enfire equity R-Z-—ZFFNA-THRA AEELE
interest of Ningbo Yiyuan Electronic Technology Company RERIEREFRHRBERAG N ((EKIZ
limited (“Ningbo VYiyuan"] at a consideration of a2 #Eas PEREARK
RMB1,600,000. The net assets of Ningbo Yiyuan at the 1,600,0007T - M EHH - 2 XI5 R
date of disposal were as follows: FEEWT
2010
—E2-ZF
RMB’000
AR®BTT
Net assets disposed of: BHEZEE:
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB RRE 130
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BRK 992
Deposits and other receivables ’Re & H M E K KRIAE 315
Paid in advances BB RIE 2,301
Bank balances and cash RITEHR KBS 3
Other payables and accruals Hi AN RIE N A E (2,419)
Receipt in advances B K IE (425)
897
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary =y ) NS R 703
Total consideration BRE 1,600
Satisfied by: SO
Cash Be 1,600
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: KEHEHNRERA:
Cash consideration BERE 1,600
Bank balances and cash disposed of BEHENRITEHRERS (3)
1,597

NINGBO YIDONG ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED ~ ZRIZRE FRHER DT
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44. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 44 EEEH

At the end of the reporting period, certain assets of the RBERR AEEETEEDHER
Group were pledged to secure bank borrowings granted to ERAEEERZRITBEZRSE 7

the Group as follows: T
2010 2009
—E-BF —TTNF
RMB'0O00  RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®TT
Property, plant and equipment Y- BEREE 9,421 174,836
Investment properties REME 1,268 1,325
Prepaid lease payments BNEER 5,325 11956
Pledged bank deposits BEHEARITHER - 10,000
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RESULTS E 4
For the year ended 31 December
BHEZ+-A=1+-HLEEFE
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
ZZERE ZZT+EE ZZTEN\E ZEThE ZE-EF
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARBTIT ARETT ARETT AR®TR
Turnover i 317274 362,378 Q4,522 25,618 14,422
Cost of sales HERAK (274,311) (327057) (@8,951) (66,7806] (17,299)
Gross profit (loss) EHM(ES) 42963 35,321 (4,429) (41,168) (2,877)
Other income Halg A 10,049 6,186 58,092 10,309 10,175
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (5,625) (4,850) (1,024) (682) (1,381)
Administrative expenses THER (56,895) (179139) (150,068) (34,257) (38,889)
Finance costs A AR (17,638) (31,862) [30,957) (10,076) (9,091)
loss on disposal of property, plant and HEW X - B FE & &%
equipment and prepaid lease RIAREE R
payments ZE#E (78,064)
Gain on change of status from fEAREARHEE
subsidiaries to available-for-sale BREZH50MED
investments PR g 6,729 —
Gain on disposal of associates HERE QR KA - - 1,080 - -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & KT8 2R I g - 5915 - - 703
Gain (loss) on invalidation of SR NCIE &
subsidiaries (E5#E) (7408) 8,115 —
Provision for claims REEE - — (8,945) (3,800 (4,192)
loss before taxation BRATBRATEE (27146) (168,429) [136,930) [71,559) (123,616)
Income tax credit (expenses| FEfEe (ML) 3901 (23,155) (125) 430 (4)
loss for the year FREE (23,245) (191,584) (137055) 71,129 (123,620)
Attributable to: e
Owners of the company RRBHEBA (21,087) (190,476) (135,447) (70,525) (123,610)
Non-controlling inferests RIS (2,158) (1,108 (1,608 (604 (10)
loss for the year FAEE (23,245) (191,584 (137,055) (71,129) (123,620)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EE -BEREDR
At 31 December
R+=RA=+-H
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
—EERF ZTT+F ZZTTNF ZTTHhE ZT-BF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETIT ARETT AR¥TR
Total assets BELE 795,228 633,628 335,519 290,870 102,600
Total liabilities BELE (607,688 634.999) [475,088) (501,085) (436,113)
187,540 (1,371) (139,569) (210,215) (333,513)
Equity attributable to owners of the AREHEEA
company iR 184,140 (3,614) (140,183) (210,225) (333,513)
Non-controlling interests JEE = 3,400 2,243 614 10 —
187540 (1,371) [139,569) (210,215) (333,513)
120 NINGBO YIDONG ELECTRONIC COMPANY LIMITED FRIERETRHBERD A



Tz AR FIR AR A5

NINGBO YIDONG ELECTIIONIC COMPANY LIMITED



	Cover
	Characterics of the Growth Enterprise Market
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Financial Highlight
	Chairman’s Statement
	Management’s Discussion And Analysis
	Corporate Governance Report
	Directors, Supervisors And Senior Management
	Report of the Directors
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Summary of Financial Information
	Back Cover

